
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Monday, 24 October 2022 
 
 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 1 November 2022 
beginning at 

6:15 pm 
via 

Teams Live: 

https://bit.ly/3soM329 

 
 
TO: Councillor Steve Holes (Chair) 
 Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Steve Beer 
Councillor Anne Buckley 
Councillor Leigh Hadaway 
Councillor Wayne Irish 
 

Councillor Adam Manning 
Councillor Tanya Park 
Councillor Bruce Tennent 
Councillor Gin Tidridge 
 

 
 

Staff Contacts: Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer, 
catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Sarah King, Corporate Director, Support Services (CFO), tel 023 
8068 8011 Email: sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that the filming, audio recording, photography and use of social media is 
permitted at meetings open to the public. We ask that you notify the Chair or Support 
Officers in advance so that all attendees can be notified, and reasonable facilities can be 
provided. More information can be found here. 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/11419/recording-photography-and-filming-of-ebc-meetings-final.pdf


AGENDA 
 

1.  Apologies  
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2022. 
 

3.   Public Participation  
 
You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following email 
address: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is 
12pm on Monday 31 October 2022. 
 
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting in person so that we can 
manage numbers.  We are still encouraging all those in attendance to take a 
lateral flow test before attending the meeting.  PLEASE DO NOT ATTEND IF 
YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS. 
 

4.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

5.  Procurement Policy (Pages 11 - 58) 
 

6.  Corporate Fees and Charges (Pages 59 - 78) 
 

7.  Verbal Update on Financial Accounts Audit  
 

8.  Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring Statement (QTR 2) (Pages 79 - 88) 
 

9.  Verbal Updates from Members Representing Strategic Risk Management Group 
(SRMG) /Housing Group  
 

10.  Cabinet Forward Plan (Pages 89 - 94) 
 

11.  A&R Work Programme (Pages 95 - 96) 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 17 January 2023 at 6:15 pm 

TBC 
 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 6 September 2022  (6:15 pm – 7:22 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Holes (Chair); Councillors Bourne, Buckley, Hadaway, Irish, 
Manning, Park, Tennent and Tidridge 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors  
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

170. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

171. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

172. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2022 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

173. FUTURE WAYS OF WORKING UPDATE 
 
The Executive Head of Organisational Development presented the report. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Update on Future 
Ways of Working report.  
 

174. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY MONITORING STATEMENT 
 
The Chief internal Auditor (Acting) presented the report. 
 
Councillor Broomfield requested confirmation of when there would be a 
follow up review due for the Horton Heath project and asked if it could be 
shared with the Horton Heath Development Management Committee when 
it was available. 
 

3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 

The Chief internal Auditor (Acting) confirmed that the Chief Internal 
Auditor’s Monitoring Report, that includes the summary of the findings 
from the One Horton Heath Follow Up Review, would be shared with the 
Horton Heath Development Management Committee once it was finalised. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Audit and Resources Committee considered the Internal 
Audit Monitoring Statement for the first quarter of 2022/23. 
 

175. EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS VERBAL UPDATE 
 
The Executive Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer provided a 
verbal update, which was as follows: 
 

 To date the audit was progressing well with work on the material 
risk areas ahead of schedule. In particular; 

 
1. Valuations – Internal valuations were all completed in June and 

with the EY specialist for assessment. 

2. Nitrates – This was an unknown for EY but they had engaged a 
specialist, who had been met with several times to bring them 
up to speed. Some areas of technical accounting were to be 
agreed but there were no issues at the current time.  

3. Group assessment – related company accounts were discussed 
with EY and there we no issues at the current time. 

 

 The walk through and systems work was complete, and analytics 
data due to be sent in the next couple of weeks. The actual audit 
would take place during November and December as previously 
planned. 

 
176. VERBAL UPDATES FROM MEMBERS REPRESENTING STRATEGIC 

RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP (SRMG) / PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE 
GROUP (PEG) AND HOUSING GROUP 
 
(a) Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG) 
 

Councillor Holes reported SRMG had met on 5 September 2022 
and that: 
 
• The group reviewed the Corporate Risk Register and 

discussed the changes made since their last review.   

• There were updates on the Operational Risk Registers from 
three areas, these were from the Environment Executive 
Area, Health and Wellbeing Executive Area and Local Area 
Managers. Some suggestions were made to officers. 

4



3 
 

 

• There was a common theme coming from officers around 
resources and management of staff vacancies, which was 
also reflected in the Corporate Risk Register. The review of 
the People Strategy and the work around Attract, Recruit, 
Retain should mitigate this risk, although it was recognised 
that this was a risk facing all organisations, not just particular 
to EBC 

 
The Executive Head of Organisational Development added that the draft 
People Strategy based on the themes of Recruit, Reward and Retain was 
due to go to the Corporate Leadership Board and Executive Team for 
approval, along with a draft Learning and Development Strategy. 
 
(b) Procurement Executive Group (PEG) 
 

Councillor Irish reported that PEG had met that afternoon, and the 
following was discussed: 
 
• A draft update to Contract Standing Orders was presented, 

which would be proposed at Council in November when 
updates to the Constitution were presented. The update 
provided the rules around compliance with public contract 
regulations when using Dynamic Purchasing System. The 
Group was happy with the proposal and the Executive Head 
of Governance would now share with procuring officers to 
seek their input. 

• The Group reviewed its Terms of Reference and agreed no 
changes were necessary. 

• The Group reviewed the Procurement Action Plan and 
Procurement Performance Indicators. It was suggested that 
officers considered approaching other local authorities to 
establish a procurement forum, similar to the Hampshire and 
Isle of Wight Procurement Partnership that previously met, 
so that best practice could be shared. It was agreed that this 
would be added to the Action List. 

• The Group noted that there had been one waiver requested 
and approved during Q1 of 2022/23.  

• An update on the progress of the development of the 
Procurement Policy was provided and questions were 
discussed. Currently the plan was to present the draft policy 
for scrutiny to this Committee on 1 November 2022, although 
the timetable would be reviewed, given some comments 
raised around market testing the proposed policy.  

• The Group received a paper on the procurement of spare 
parts for the Council’s fleet, which sought agreement where 
circumstances apply for the procurement of second-hand 
vehicles and the use of aftermarket refurbished, 
reconditioned or recovered spare parts where they meet 

5



4 
 

 

strict safety and quality criteria. This was well received by the 
group who agreed that this was a positive step.  

• The next meeting was on 22 November 2022. 
 

(c) Housing Group  
 
There was no update from the Housing Group on this occasion as 
they had not met since the last Audit and Resources Committee 
meeting. 

 
177. CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 
The Committee considered the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
  
It was AGREED - 
  
That the current Forward Plan be noted. 
 

178. ACTION LIST 
 
The Committee considered the Action List, which set out the recent 
decisions and subsequent actions arising from the Committee.  
 
The Internal Audit Charter External Assessment had now been completed. 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the Action List can be removed from future agendas. 
 

179. A&R WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee considered its current Work Programme. 
  
It was AGREED - 
  
That the Work Programme be noted. 
 

180. EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
(1) That, in pursuance of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following items of business on the grounds that they 
are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act; 
and 

 
(2) That, in pursuance of the public interest test, the public 

interest in disclosing the information contained in the following 

6



5 
 

 

item of business was outweighed by the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption. 

 
181. COUNTER FRAUD REPORT 

 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the report be noted. 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 1 November 2022  

PROCUREMENT POLICY 

Report of the Strategy Lead (Environment) 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the Audit and Resources Committee:  
 
(1) considers the ‘Procurement Policy - Summary’ and ‘Procurement Policy - 

Guidance and Implementation’ document, which sets out why, and how the 
Council will seek to procure its goods and services in a more sustainable 
way; and 

(2) comments and makes recommendations to Cabinet. 

 

Summary 
 
The Council declared a Climate and Environmental Emergency in July 2019 and agreed 
that the Council’s Procurement Policy should recognise carbon neutrality as one of the 
primary considerations. When included within the Council’s total carbon emissions, ‘Scope 
3 emissions’ account for approximately 80% of the overall carbon footprint (of which the 
emissions relating to the procurement of goods and services account for the overwhelming 
majority). 

Focus for Scrutiny 

The draft Procurement Policy for Eastleigh is therefore presented for comments. 

The purpose of this policy is to inform all Council employees, procuring managers, 
suppliers and contractors of the Council’s new expectations in relation to procuring goods 
and services in a more sustainable way. This includes considering the wider 
environmental, social and economic benefits when procuring goods and services, and in 
particular the suppliers’ carbon emissions.    

Statutory Powers 
 
s1 Localism Act 2011 

 

9

Agenda Item 5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. Climate breakdown and negative environmental impacts are among the 
biggest challenges facing the long-term future of residents and businesses of 
Eastleigh. 

2. When included within the Council’s total carbon emissions, ‘scope 3 
emissions’ account for approximately 80% of the overall carbon footprint (of 
which the emissions relating to the procurement of goods and services 
account for the overwhelming majority, 95%) (‘scope 3 includes business 
travel, commuting, working from home and procurement). See paragraph 9 for 
further details.  
 

3. By better monitoring the emissions resulting from the procurement of goods 
and services in the future, the Council can: 

 Assess where the emission hotspots are in its supply chain; 
 Identify resource and energy risks in its supply chain; 
 Identify energy efficiency and associated cost reduction opportunities in its 

supply chain; 
 Engage suppliers and assist them to implement sustainability initiatives; 

and 
 Improve the Council’s energy efficiency  

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

4. The Council’s Procurement Policy will encourage our suppliers to reduce their 
environmental footprint, thereby helping the Council reduce its own wider 
carbon emissions, contributing to environmental objectives in the Corporate 
Plan 2015-2025. 

5. The Procurement Policy will also contribute to improving societal benefits and 
driving local economic growth. 

Introduction 

6. Procurement is the process of purchasing goods, works and services to 
enable the Council to fulfil its functions. The Council’s suppliers are among its 
most important stakeholders and the Council seeks to work collaboratively for 
a mutually beneficial relationship with its supply chain. 

7. Sustainable procurement means considering the environmental, social and 
economic impacts when purchasing goods and services, in addition to 
conventional procurement considerations such as price.  

8. This is achieved through addressing issues such as inequality, poverty, 
working conditions in the supply chain, purchasing sustainable 
products/services and embedding circular economy principles to reduce 
waste. This type of procurement can bring additional benefit to the community, 
over and above direct purchasing, known as Social Value.  

Greenhouse gas emissions  

9. Greenhouse Gas emissions are categorised into three groups or ‘scopes’ by 
the widely used international accounting tool, the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 
Protocol:  

 Scope 1 covers direct emissions from owned or controlled sources such 
as from combustion in owned or controlled boilers and vehicles;  

 Scope 2 covers indirect emissions from the generation of purchased 
electricity and water (scope 2 emissions physically occur at the facilities 
where these are generated); and  

 Scope 3 includes all other indirect emissions that are a consequence of 
the activities of the organisation but occur from sources not owned or 
controlled by the organisation. Such examples include the use of 
purchased goods and services (procurement), business travel, employee 
commuting and working from home emissions. 
 

10. The key driver for the Procurement Policy is to ensure that the Council’s 
suppliers begin to report their greenhouse gas emissions to the Council in 
order to promote a culture overtime whereby suppliers will be encouraged to 
reduce their carbon emissions (and therefore the Council’s overall ‘Scope 3’ 
emissions). This will be achieved on a phased in basis for all suppliers of 
contracts over the current procurement threshold value*. 

11. The Council fully recognises the need to work with its suppliers to encourage 
and drive forward sustainability improvements and the Policy aims to provide 

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

the necessary support and guidance for suppliers. It is expected that this 
Policy will be updated over time to allow for more stringent targets to be set 
and to also, subject to progress, introduce these requirements to all suppliers. 

12. The Policy also outlines how wider social values (including broader 
environmental, social and economic benefits) should be taken account of 
during the procurement of goods, works and services.  

*threshold for formal tendering is currently any contract valued £75,000 and 
above  

 
Proposed Policy 

13. It is proposed that through the Policy and new recommended tender scoring 
criteria, the Council will select suppliers’ that actively: 

Reduce their environmental footprint through: 
 

 Reducing the lifecycle carbon impact of their goods and services; 

 Aligning their aims with the Council’s Climate and Environmental 
Emergency Strategy; 

 Conserving resources, including the use of energy, water and materials; 
and 

 Reducing waste and increasing reuse within their goods, services and 
operations.  

 
Deliver benefits to society through:  
 

 Complying with International Labour Organization (ILO) principles in 
respect to human rights and conditions of employment; 

 Ensuring that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any of 
their supply chains and in any part of their business; 

 Ensuring that the Council’s procured goods and services, and the supply 
chains that our suppliers’ use are ethically sourced (therefore in a morally 
good and correct manner); 

 Ensuring that the Council’s procured goods and services are equitable and 
accessible to service users; 

 Ensuring appropriate and positive workplace behaviour; 

 Ensuring compliance with equalities legislation; and 

 Aligning the suppliers’ aims and ambitions with the Council’s Equalities 
Strategy.  

 
Drive economic growth through: 
 

 Supporting local job creation and facilitating opportunities for small-and-
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) and social businesses with local spend 
and employment where possible; 

 Actively reducing the life-cycle cost of products; and 

 Providing the living wage (at a minimum) to employees and contractors. 

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
14. In particular, to reduce the lifecycle carbon impact of the Council’s suppliers’ 

goods and services, the proposed new requirements for the Council’s 
suppliers of contracts above the current threshold value are: 

From 1 October 2023 

 Suppliers must report to the Council their ‘Scope 1 and 2’ greenhouse gas 
emissions on an annual basis. 

 
From 1 April 2024 

 Suppliers must report to the Council their ‘Scope 1, 2 and 3’ greenhouse 
gas emissions on an annual basis. 
 

From 1 April 2025 

 Suppliers must report to the Council their ‘Scope 1, 2 and 3’ greenhouse 
gas emissions on an annual basis and demonstrate the adoption of a 
carbon reduction plan for their business. 
 

13



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Supplier Selection and Monitoring 

15. Suppliers of contracts over the current procurement threshold value will now 
be expected to report their greenhouse gas emissions and demonstrate the 
adoption of a carbon reduction plan, as a pass / fail question, as per the 
phased in timeframes provided in paragraph 14 above. Suppliers will be 
granted six months’ grace to period to comply with the new requirements from 
the contract award date. 

16. In addition, procuring officers and managers will also be required to select and 
score broader social value criteria (as outlined in paragraph 13 above) into 
their procurement exercises, proportionate to the value and type of contract. 

17. The adopted social value criteria as part of tender evaluation should then be 
reported as a suite of Key Performance Indicators throughout the lifetime of 
the contract. 

Buying Standards 

18. Responsible officers and managers who are procuring goods, services and 
works should now also set specific standards for the products they purchase. 
Specifically, procurers should strive to achieve the best practice standards, 
which go further than the mandatory standards identified within the 
Government Buying Standards (GBS).  

19. In some circumstances the current Council standards may exceed the best 
practise GBS, in which case this practice should continue.  

20. Responsible officers and managers will now be required to adhere to these 
standards and reflect them within tender specifications.  

Stakeholder Engagement 

21. In developing the Procurement Policy, a survey was sent to 40 current and 
recent suppliers representing approximately 90% of the Council’s spend. The 
survey broadly sought views on the suppliers’ environmental, social and 
economic practices and was open from 13 July to 19 August 2022. 

22. Seven responses were received (representing a 17.5% response rate) which 
included three businesses from the construction sector, two from the 
professional, scientific and technical sector, one from the manufacturing sector 
and one from the utilities sector. 

23. In response to a question regarding the adoption of a net zero or carbon 
neutral target, just one business had set a carbon net-zero target, five are 
planning to and one has not. Furthermore, those who had yet to set such a 
target were unsure if such an endeavour would likely increase their costs. The 
business who had adopted a carbon target (who incidentally install solar 
panels, car chargers and other renewable energy technologies) stated that 
their target would not lead to an increased cost. 

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

24. Finally, all seven businesses have (or have the equivalent of) modern slavery 
and equality and diversity policies. 

25. In addition to the supplier survey, a staff survey on sustainable procurement 
was also open during August to gain insight from staff across the Council on 
the possible motivations and barriers to more sustainable procurement 
practises. 

26. 48 staff responded from a range of departments which identified that around 
half of staff had already taken steps to procure more sustainably. Three 
quarters of staff do not know however what best practice for sustainable 
procurement is and nearly 60% did not know what the Council expects of 
them. 

 
27. This suggests that there is already good ambition to procure more sustainably, 

and that this policy will help to increase the knowledge of staff to do so.   
   

Next Steps 

28. As the number of responses from the supplier survey was limited, it is clear 
that further supplier consultation and engagement is necessary. It is 
suggested that the draft Policy is taken to Cabinet for comment and to seek 
agreement to consult with the Council’s key suppliers to allow for any 
refinements and changes ahead of adoption. This period would also allow for 
a trial of the Policy with key suppliers and explore how the Council’s suppliers 
would like to receive future support.  
 

29. The consultation period will give the Council’s suppliers’ sufficient time to 
understand the Council’s requirements ahead of introducing the phased 
approach (for greenhouse gas emission monitoring) and will ensure that the 
Council’s suppliers will be able to deliver the ambitions.  
  

30. Subsequently, staff training and implementation of the Policy will be key to its 
success. To support this, the Council’s Climate Change Manager, 
Sustainability Officer and Procurement and Insurance Officer will develop and 
lead a package of support including training, tutorials, and the possible 
development of a procurement hub on the Council’s intranet to support the 
implementation of the policy. 

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Financial Implications 

31. There are no direct financial implications for the development of the 
Procurement Policy at this stage and it is assumed that future procurement 
activity across the Council will be achieved within current resources.  

32. As sustainability and social value criteria are weighted more heavily in the 
procurement of goods and services across the Council, it is possible that 
some suppliers may need to increase their costs. The impact the Policy will 
have on costs will be explored through the consultation exercise. 

33. Purchasing goods, services and works which may be at higher environmental 
sustainability standards may also increase costs; however, as the market is 
driven in this direction, and as, for example, the One Horton Heath build 
phases are likely to purchase materials in bulk, suppliers may also be able to 
counteract higher product costs.    

34. Procurement decisions will continue to progress through the normal decision-
making process and so the potential increased costs to contracts will be 
monitored and scrutinised. 

35. If managers identify that there is a need for additional budget, this will be 
identified during the service and budget planning process and reported as 
required to Cabinet. 

Risk Assessment 

36. This Policy will help suppliers and all Council staff understand the approach 
the Council now requires to procure goods and services in a more sustainable 
way.  

37. Without the Policy, the Council would fall behind on its ambition to recognise 
carbon neutrality as one of the primary considerations in its procurement 
Policy (as agreed as part of its Climate Change and Environmental 
Emergency declaration).  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

38. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and attached as an appendix to the 
report. In summary the EqIA shows that: 

 Any future procurement of goods, services or works may have the 
potential to impact on all people with protected characteristics, 
depending on the procurement exercise at the time. Individual 
procurement exercises will however continue in the normal way.  
 

 The Procurement Policy sets a framework to guide future procurement 
which seeks to promote additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a contract.  

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

39. The Procurement Policy is part of the Council’s response to the Climate 
Change and Environmental Emergency declaration. 

40. In 2020/21, the Council emitted 9,163 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 
(tCO2e) from its activities. The largest area of emissions was from ‘Scope 3’ 
activities (approximately 80% of the total, within areas that are generally a 
consequence of the Council’s wider activities and are outside of the Council’s 
direct control). 
 

41. Of the total ‘Scope 3’ activities, the largest proportion was from procured 
activities (approximately 95%) and so it is vital that the Council’s suppliers are 
encouraged to reduce their own carbon emissions.  
 

42. Furthermore, of the Council’s procured activities, the greatest area of 
emissions currently is construction (approximately 36%). When build phases 
of the One Horton Heath project begin this figure will rise significantly. 
 

43. The requirement for all suppliers to commit to report the carbon emissions 
from their operations as part of this policy will help to promote a culture 
overtime whereby suppliers will be encouraged to reduce their carbon 
emissions (and therefore the Council’s overall ‘Scope 3’ emissions). 
Furthermore, the introduction of the buying standards and procurement 
weightings will allow the Council to objectively choose between differing 
suppliers based on their environmental, societal and broader economic 
values.   
 

Conclusion 

44. The Council will aim to procure goods and services in a way that minimises 
their impact on the environment and reducing carbon emissions, and gives 
value to the wider society and economy, balancing this with value for money 
over the long term. 
 

45. The Procurement Policy outlines the expectations on the Council’s suppliers’ 
and their supply chains, including reducing their carbon emissions and 
environmental footprint and delivering benefits to society and the economy. 
 

MIKE CULVER 
STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT SENIOR SPECIALIST (ENVIRONMENT) 

 
Date: 01 November 2022 
Contact Officer: Mike Culver  
Tel No: Ext.: 8472 
e-mail: mike.culver@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 3 
 

17



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 Climate and Environment Emergency Update, Report to Policy and Performance 
Scrutiny Panel, 14 July 2022 

 Modern Slavery Statement, Report to Cabinet, 13 September 2021 

 Eastleigh Borough Council Procurement Code of Practice, October 2006 
 
Appendices included in this report; 
 
1. Procurement Policy – Summary 
2. Procurement Policy – Guidance and Implementation 
3. Procurement Policy – Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 

18



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eastleigh Borough Council 
Procurement Policy 

 
Summary 

 
2022-2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 

2 
 

Contents 

 
1.0 What is procurement? ........................................................................................................................ 3 

2.0 Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

3.0 Aim .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

4.0 Our policy........................................................................................................................................... 3 

5.0 Scoring for social value and tender evaluation ................................................................................... 4 

6.0 Buying Standards ............................................................................................................................... 5 

7.0 Monitoring .......................................................................................................................................... 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 

3 
 

1.0 What is procurement? 
 
1.1 Procurement is the process of purchasing goods, works and services to enable Eastleigh Borough 

Council (the Council) to fulfil its functions. The Council’s suppliers are one of its key stakeholders 
and the Council seeks to work collaboratively for a mutually beneficial relationship with its supply 
chain. 

 
1.2 Sustainable procurement means considering the environmental, social and economic impacts when 

purchasing goods and services.  
 
1.3 This is achieved through addressing issues such as inequality, poverty, working conditions in the 

supply chain, purchasing sustainable goods, products and services and embedding circular 
economy principles to reduce waste. This type of procurement can bring additional benefit to the 
community, over and above direct purchasing, known as Social Value. 

2.0 Purpose 
 

2.1 The purpose of this policy is to introduce and inform all Council employees, procuring managers, 
suppliers and contractors of the Council’s new expectations in relation to procuring goods and 
services in a more sustainable way.  

 
2.2 This includes through considering the wider environmental, social and economic benefits when 

procuring goods and services, and in particular the Council’s suppliers’ carbon emissions.    
 
2.3 Responsible officers, procuring managers, suppliers and contractors should also refer to the full 

details of the policy within the accompanying Guidance and Implementation document. 

3.0 Aim 
 
3.1 The Council recognises that it has a vital role in furthering sustainable development, through its 

procurement of buildings, goods, works, labour and services.  
 
3.2 The Council will aim to procure goods and services in a way that balances value for money over the 

long term and gives value to the wider society and economy, whilst minimising its impact on the 
environment. 

 
3.3 The Council also aim to ensure that all of its suppliers above the current contract threshold consider 

and actively reduce their greenhouse gas emissions and carbon footprint. 

4.0 Our policy 
 
4.1 Through our procurement process, we will favour suppliers that actively:  
 

Reduce their environmental footprint through: 
 

 Reducing the lifecycle carbon impact of their goods and services; 

 Aligning their aims with the Council’s Climate and Environmental Emergency Strategy; 

 Conserving resources, including the use of energy, water and materials; and  

 Reducing waste and increasing reuse within their goods, services and operations. 
 
Deliver benefits to society through:  
 
 Complying with International Labour Organization (ILO) principles in respect to human rights 

and conditions of employment; 

21



 

4 
 

 Ensuring that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any of their supply chains and 
in any part of their business;  

 Ensuring that our procured goods and services, and the supply chains that our suppliers’ use 
are ethically sourced (therefore in a morally good and correct manner); 

 Ensuring that our procured goods and services are equitable and accessible to service users; 

 Ensuring appropriate and positive workplace behaviour; 

 Ensuring compliance with equalities legislation; and 

 Aligning their aims and ambitions with the Council’s Equalities Strategy. 
 

Drive economic growth through: 
 

 Supporting local job creation and facilitating opportunities for small-and-medium-sized 
enterprises (SMEs) and social businesses with local spend and employment where possible; 

 Actively reducing the life-cycle cost of products; and 

 Providing the living wage (at a minimum) to employees and contractors. 
 
4.2 In particular, to reduce the lifecycle carbon impact of the Council’s suppliers’ goods and services, 

the Council’s new requirements for suppliers of contracts over the current contract threshold value 
are outlined below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 Suppliers will be given a 6-month grace period to adopt the new requirements from contract award. 

Advice on how to measure greenhouse gas emissions is provided in the accompanying Guidance 
and Implementation document. 

5.0 Scoring for social value and tender evaluation 
 

5.1 To design in wider social value requirements during procurement activities, in addition to the 
greenhouse gas emission pass / fail questions, responsible officers and managers should now also 
select and score wider social value considerations (identified within the policy wording in paragraph 
4.1) as appropriate to the tender exercise, in addition to their service specific requirements and 
processes.  

 
5.2 Responsible officers and managers selecting social value considerations as part of their tender 

evaluation process will also need to define their scoring methodology in line with their requirements. 
 
  

 
New requirements for suppliers of contracts over the current contract threshold value: 

 
From 1st October 2023 

 

 Suppliers must report their ‘Scope 1 and 2’ greenhouse gas emissions on an annual basis  
 
From 1st April 2024 

 

 Suppliers must report their ‘Scope 1, 2 and 3’ greenhouse gas emissions on an annual 
basis 

 
From 1st April 2025 

  

 Suppliers must report their ‘Scope 1, 2 and 3’ greenhouse gas emissions on an annual 
basis and demonstrate the adoption of a carbon reduction plan for their business 

22



 

5 
 

6.0 Buying Standards 
 
6.1 Responsible officers and managers who are procuring goods, services and works should now also 

set specific standards for the products they purchase. The Council should be striving to achieve the 
best practise standards (as a minimum) identified within the Government Buying Standards (GBS). 

 
6.2 Responsible officers and managers should also consider the longer-term best value lifecycle of the 

products that they purchase, the principle of ‘buy once, buy right’, economies of scale (buying in 
bulk, where relevant) and the repairability of the products that they purchase.  
 

6.3 Further to the GBS, the Council also reaffirms its long-standing policy recognising the critical role of 
peatlands by not knowingly using compost that contains peat in the borough and it seeks to ban the 
use of unsustainably sourced materials or consumables such as palm oil and other virgin products 
where deforestation or natural habitat destruction has taken place for its production. 

7.0 Monitoring 
 
7.1 Supplier greenhouse gas emission reports should be reported annually to the Council’s respective 

contract manager, Climate Change Manager, Sustainability Officer and Procurement and Insurance 
Officer on the phased in basis outlined in paragraph 4.2. 

7.2 Responsible officers and managers will also need to establish a meaningful and proportionate 
method of measuring the wider social value criteria adopted as part of the contract throughout the 
lifetime of a contract, to complement their usual reporting practises. The adopted indicators should 
be reported to the Climate Change Manager, Sustainability Officer and Procurement and Insurance 
Officer on a quarterly basis from contract award.  

 
 
 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eastleigh Borough Council 
Procurement Policy 

 
Guidance and Implementation 

 
2022-2025 

 
 

 

 

  

25



 

2 
 

Contents  
 
1.0 What is procurement? ........................................................................................................................ 3 

2.0 Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

3.0 Aim .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

4.0 Our policy........................................................................................................................................... 3 

5.0 What the Council is doing .................................................................................................................. 4 

5.1 Climate and Environmental Emergency .......................................................................................... 4 

5.2 Recognising the Council’s wider environmental footprint ................................................................ 4 

5.3 Equality and diversity ...................................................................................................................... 5 

5.4 Supporting businesses ................................................................................................................... 5 

5.5 Employment and skills .................................................................................................................... 6 

6.0 Greenhouse gas emissions ................................................................................................................ 6 

7.0 Scoring for social value and tender evaluation ................................................................................... 9 

8.0 Desired outcomes ............................................................................................................................ 10 

9.0 Embedding social values ................................................................................................................. 12 

10.0 Buying standards ............................................................................................................................. 13 

11.0 Monitoring ........................................................................................................................................ 13 

12.0 Compliance ...................................................................................................................................... 14 

13.0 Contact details ................................................................................................................................. 15 

 

Appendix A – Flowchart checklist for procuring officers .............................................................................. 16 

Appendix B – Mandatory carbon reduction assessment questions ............................................................. 18 

Appendix C – Example template for evaluation of social value ................................................................... 19 

Appendix D – Buying standards .................................................................................................................. 20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

26



 

3 
 

1.0 What is procurement? 
 
1.1 Procurement is the process of purchasing goods, works and services to enable Eastleigh Borough 

Council (the Council) to fulfil its functions. The Council’s suppliers are one of its key stakeholders 
and the Council seeks to work collaboratively for a mutually beneficial relationship with its supply 
chain. 

 
1.2 Sustainable procurement means considering the environmental, social and economic impacts when 

purchasing goods and services.  
 
1.3 This is achieved through addressing issues such as inequality, poverty, working conditions in the 

supply chain, purchasing sustainable goods, products and services and embedding circular 
economy principles to reduce waste. This type of procurement can bring additional benefit to the 
community, over and above direct purchasing, known as Social Value. 

2.0 Purpose 
 

2.1 The purpose of this policy is to introduce and inform all Council employees, procuring managers, 
suppliers and contractors of the Council’s new expectations in relation to procuring goods and 
services in a more sustainable way. This includes through considering the wider environmental, 
social and economic benefits when procuring goods and services, and in particular our supplier’s 
carbon emissions.    

 
2.2 This guidance and implementation document outlines why this is important for the Council and how 

these principles should be embedded within procurement activities. 
 
2.3 A flow chart checklist is presented in Appendix A which summarises the new requirements and 

actions that procuring officers and managers are now expected to take. 

3.0 Aim 
 
3.1 The Council recognises that it has a vital role in furthering sustainable development, through its 

procurement of buildings, goods, works, labour and services.  
 
3.2 The Council will aim to procure goods and services in a way that balances value for money over the 

long term and gives value to the wider society and economy, whilst minimising its impact on the 
environment. 

 
3.3 The Council also aim to ensure that all of its suppliers above the current contract threshold consider 

and actively reduce their greenhouse gas emissions and carbon footprint. 

4.0 Our policy 
 
4.1 Through our procurement process, we will favour suppliers that actively:  
 

Reduce their environmental footprint through: 
 

 Reducing the lifecycle carbon impact of their goods and services; 

 Aligning their aims with the Council’s Climate and Environmental Emergency Strategy; 

 Conserving resources, including the use of energy, water and materials; and 

 Reducing waste and increasing reuse within their goods, services and operations. 
 
 
 
 

27



 

4 
 

Deliver benefits to society through:  
 
 Complying with International Labour Organization (ILO) principles in respect to human rights 

and conditions of employment. For more information on the ILO principles, visit the ILO 
declaration on fundamental principles and rights at work on the ILO website; 

 Ensuring that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any of their supply chains and 
in any part of their business; 

 Ensuring that our procured goods and services, and the supply chains that our suppliers’ use 
are ethically sourced (therefore in a morally good and correct manner); 

 Ensuring that our procured goods and services are equitable and accessible to service users; 

 Ensuring appropriate and positive workplace behaviour; 

 Ensuring compliance with equalities legislation; and 

 Aligning their aims and ambitions with the Council’s Equalities Strategy.  
 

Drive economic growth through: 
 

 Supporting local job creation and facilitating opportunities for small-and-medium-sized 
enterprises (SMEs) and social businesses with local spend and employment where possible; 

 Actively reducing the life-cycle cost of products; and 

 Providing the living wage (at a minimum) to employees and contractors. 
 

5.0 What the Council is doing 

5.1 Climate and Environmental Emergency 

5.1.1 The Council declared a Climate and Environmental Emergency in July 2019 and set three key 
ambitious targets to:  

 
a) put in place measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions achieve carbon 
neutrality by 2025; 
 
b) work with partners to aim for all projects and services delivered in the borough to achieve carbon 
neutrality by 2030; and 
 
c) ensure that the Council’s procurement policy recognises carbon neutrality as one of its primary 
considerations. 

  
5.1.2 Furthermore, the Council also recognised the declines in nature witnessed since the 1970s and 

committed to take this into account. 
 
5.1.3 For more information on the Council’s Climate and Environment Emergency, visit the Climate and 

Environment Emergency Strategy and Action plan on the Eastleigh Borough Council website. 

5.2 Recognising the Council’s wider environmental footprint 

5.2.1 Following the Conference of the Parties (COP26) in Glasgow in 2021, the Council also passed the 
following motion:  

 
5.2.2 “[The] Council values global rainforests and virgin natural environments in sequestering carbon, 

water management and biodiversity and commits to:  
 

(a) reaffirm its long-standing policy recognising the critical role of peatlands by not knowingly using 
compost that contains peat (or any other growing media containing peat) in the borough;  

 

28

https://www.ilo.org/declaration/lang--en/index.htm
https://www.ilo.org/declaration/lang--en/index.htm
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/6355/climate-change-and-environmental-emergency-strategy-2020-2030.pdf
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/6355/climate-change-and-environmental-emergency-strategy-2020-2030.pdf


 

5 
 

(b) extend this by formalising [an] established practice of banning use of unsustainably sourced 
materials or consumables such as palm oil and other virgin products where deforestation or natural 
habitat destruction has taken place for its production; 

 

(c) require any contractor to make the Council aware of their sustainability policies when applying to 
contract work for the Council and for this to be taken into account in the award of contracts; and 

 

(d) review procurement activities and in any of its operations or services it commissions, with regard 
to the overall contract value to encourage developers, businesses, their contractors and other 
partners, to adopt a proportional sustainability delivery and procurement policy, and to publish on 
any websites and be included in promotional material when working on projects within the borough. 

5.3 Equality and diversity  

5.3.1 The Council recognises that as a community leader it must do more to tackle structural inequality, 
promote diversity and provide services in such a way that enable all its residents to participate in 
civic life and have an equal opportunity to flourish.  

 
5.3.2 As such, the Council has adopted the Equality Strategy and Action Plan which sets out how the 

Council will not only fulfil its legal duties under the Equality Act 2010 but will work towards 
embedding an inclusive mindset within all its services, processes and culture in order to create an 
approach that values every individual regardless of their background and characteristics, thus 
enabling greater equality and minimising the risk of unintentional institutional bias.  

 
5.3.3 For more information on the Council’s Equality Strategy and Action Plan, visit the Equality Strategy 

and Action Plan on the Eastleigh Borough Council website. 
 
5.3.4 In all procurement activity, the Council also aims to be consistent with the highest standards of 

integrity, ensuring fairness and transparency in awarding contracts. Equality and diversity, social 
responsibility and safety are important criteria in the provision of goods, services and works 
procured.  

 
5.3.5 For more information on how the Council ensures modern slavery is not occurring inside supply 

chains visit the modern slavery statement on the Eastleigh Borough Council website. 

5.4 Supporting businesses  

5.4.1 The Council provides a range of advice and services for businesses that fall into two broad 

categories: those already operating in the borough and those that wish to. 

 

5.4.2 For the first group, the principal objective is to retain them – since a company that relocates to 

another area, even if it is a neighbouring one, usually involves local residents losing jobs, local 

suppliers losing custom and the local market becoming weaker. Typical business support activities 

would include interceding if there are regulatory difficulties, land or office search if the business is 

expanding, assistance in identifying suppliers and customers, advice and information on funding 

sources and help with staffing.  

 

5.4.3 In general, the role of the Council is to ensure that companies can develop and adapt to new market 

challenges in the borough of Eastleigh, and to solve any problems that businesses may encounter 

along the way. There is a free live chat service, Platform4, available to local businesses as a part of 

this service. For more information on Platform 4, visit the support for businesses area on the 

Eastleigh Borough Council website. 

 

29

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/9525/equality-strategy-and-action-plan.pdf
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/9525/equality-strategy-and-action-plan.pdf
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/10207/modern-slavery-statement.pdf
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/business/support-for-businesses/platform-4
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/business/support-for-businesses/platform-4


 

6 
 

5.4.4 Services for the second group of companies that are interested in setting up in the borough are 

broadly similar but might, in addition, include information on licences, business rates and grants, 

networking assistance – providing contacts with potential suppliers and customers – and, 

potentially, help with staffing and recruitment. 

 

5.4.5 Where necessary, the Council’s business support team will work with colleagues as well as external 

agencies and private landowners to unlock and develop more employment space in the borough, 

push for infrastructure improvements (access roads, broadband etc) and ensure that local education 

and training facilities are providing the skills our businesses need. 

 

5.4.6 The Council also recognises the importance of small businesses to the local economy and has 

taken steps to ensure transparency that may benefit smaller businesses, such as;  

 

 All contracts above £75,000 are advertised on Contracts Finder. For more information visit ; 

 All smaller contracts are published on the Council’s website; and 

 Where possible large contracts will be split up into separate lots.  
 

5.4.7 For more information on how the Council supports businesses, visit the support for businesses area 
on the Eastleigh Borough Council website. 
 

5.4.8 For more information on procurement, visit the procurement area on the Eastleigh Borough Council 
website. 

5.5 Employment and skills 

5.5.1 As a Local Planning Authority, the Council requires developers to create and fulfil an Employment 
and Skills Plan for major planning applications. The plans must outline a number of employment 
and skills initiatives that benefit the local community, to be financed by contributions from the 
developer.    

 
5.5.2 The extension of the runway at Southampton Airport is one such project and the creation of a new 

residential and business community through the One Horton Heath project is another. The One 
Horton Heath Employment & Skills Team works with partner organisations to create new, local jobs, 
facilitate career-based education and provide sponsorship and mentoring opportunities while 
supporting charities, the voluntary sector and small businesses.  

 
5.5.3 For more information on the Council’s Social Value Toolkit, visit the Social Value Toolkit on the 

Eastleigh Borough Council website. 

6.0 Greenhouse gas emissions 
 
6.1 In 2020/21, the Council emitted 9,163 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2e) from its 

activities, including those emitted from the goods and services it procured. For more information on 
the Council’s greenhouse gas emissions, visit the Council’s greenhouse gas emission reports 
webpage. 

 
6.2 The largest area of emissions was from ‘Scope 3’ activities (7,288 tCO2e, 80%). Generally, ‘Scope 

1 and 2’ are those emissions that are owned or controlled by the Council (such as energy for its 
buildings and fuel for its fleet), whereas ‘Scope 3’ emissions are a consequence of the Council’s 
wider activities which are not owned or controlled by the Council (for example from suppliers who 
the Council purchase goods and services from). 

 

30

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/business/support-for-businesses
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/business/support-for-businesses
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/transparency-code/procurement
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/transparency-code/procurement
https://www.onehortonheath.co.uk/social-value
https://www.onehortonheath.co.uk/social-value
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/energy-and-climate-change/greenhouse-gas-emissions-report
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/energy-and-climate-change/greenhouse-gas-emissions-report


 

7 
 

 
 

6.3 Of the total Scope 3 activities, the largest proportion was from procured goods and services (6,941 
tCO2e, 95%).   

 

 

 
6.4 As emissions resulting from procured activity account for the largest part of the Council’s carbon 

footprint, it is vital that our suppliers are encouraged to reduce their own carbon emissions, even 
though the Council has limited direct influence. 

 
6.5 Further analysis of the Council’s emissions from procured activities identifies that the largest area of 

emissions is construction (36%). This is significant as the build phases of the One Horton Heath 
project will significantly increase this figure. 

 

6941, 95% 

EBC Scope 3 Emissions 2020/21 
Tonnes carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2e) 

Business Travel

Commuting Travel

Procurement

Working from Home

31



 

8 
 

 
 
6.6 In addition, in 2021/22, the Council spent approximately £35m on goods and services – and an 

analysis of spend also identifies that the largest spend by sector was construction. 
 

 
 
6.7 To address the largest emitting sector, construction, the Council is developing a Dynamic 

Purchasing System (DPS) for suppliers. A DPS is a procedure for contracts for works, services, and 
goods whereby suppliers can join at any time. In order to access the DPS, suppliers will need to 
demonstrate their commitment to reporting their greenhouse emissions and working towards a 
carbon reduction plan. This should result in major carbon reductions over time as each supplier to 

36% 

20% 

7% 

13% 

7% 

3% 

3% 
2% 

1% 
1% 7% 

EBC Scope 3 Procurment Emissions 2020/21 

Construction

Other professional, scientific and technical
services
Waste collection, treatment and disposal costs

Other manufactured goods

Services to buildings and landscape

Office admin, office support and business
services
Machinery and equipment

Accommodation services

Textiles

Real estate services

Other

54% 

8% 
7% 

7% 

4% 

4% 

3% 

3% 

3% 

2% 

1% 

EBC largest sector specific spend 2021/22 (for contracts >£100,000)  

Construction IT / Digital Recruitment

Energy Fleet Consultants

Grounds Maintainance Fuel Insurance

Financial Services CCTV Legal Fees

32



 

9 
 

the DPS also seeks to ensure their suppliers reduce carbon output so that overall, their ‘Scope 3’ 
emissions can be reduced through the entire supply chain. 

 
6.8 To have the greatest impact, and therefore the largest reduction in emissions, the Council is now 

requiring all of its suppliers for contracts over the current contract threshold value, demonstrate a 
commitment to report their ‘Scope 1, 2 and 3’ greenhouse gas emissions and adopt a carbon 
reduction plan on a phased in, pass / fail basis as outlined below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9 The mandatory pass / fail questions which should now be applied to all procurements at the current 

contract value threshold are shown in Appendix B. Suppliers will be given a 6-month grace period to 
adopt the new requirements from contract award. 

 
6.10 Guidance for suppliers on how to measure and report greenhouse gas emissions can be found on 

the greenhouse gas protocol website and the UK business climate hub website. The Council’s 
Climate Change Manager and Sustainability Officer will also be able to assist as required and will 
help develop future training for the Council’s suppliers. 

 
6.11 In support of this approach, in June 2021, central government mandated that from the 30 

September 2021 all suppliers tendering for contracts with a lifetime value of £5m or above will be 
unable to bid if they cannot show a baseline measure and a plan to achieve net zero with agreed 
timescales.  

 
6.12 Procuring managers seeking to diverge from this policy will need to apply for a waiver and guidance 

on this can be found on the staff hub and in contract standing orders. 

7.0 Scoring for social value and tender evaluation 
  
7.1 To design in other social value requirements during procurement activities, in addition to the 

greenhouse gas emission pass / fail questions, responsible officers and managers should now also 
select and score wider social value considerations as appropriate for the contract (in addition to 
service specific requirements). An example of the type of criteria that could be used is set out in 
Appendix C. Responsible officers and managers selecting wider social value considerations will 
also need to define their scoring methodology in line with their requirements.  

 
7.2 The scoring of tenders should remain flexible and proportionate based on service requirements, 

project specific criteria and at the discretion of the project lead / manager and it is not intended for 
scoring to become restrictive or rigid. 

 

 
New requirements for suppliers of contracts over the current contract threshold value: 

 
From 1st October 2023 

 

 Suppliers must report their ‘Scope 1 and 2’ greenhouse gas emissions on an annual basis  
 
From 1st April 2024 

 

 Suppliers must report their ‘Scope 1, 2 and 3’ greenhouse gas emissions on an annual 
basis 

 
From 1st April 2025 

  

 Suppliers must report their ‘Scope 1, 2 and 3’ greenhouse gas emissions on an annual 
basis and demonstrate the adoption of a carbon reduction plan for their business 

33

https://ghgprotocol.org/
https://businessclimatehub.org/uk/


 

10 
 

7.3 In particular for scoring benefits to society, which may include (depending on requirements) 
Employment and Skills Plans (ESPs), responsible officers and managers should consider that for 
many contractors, ESPs may be written by a third party. This may cause friction at the start of the 
contract should the contractor not be aware of the commitments that were made. As such, a 
collaborative approach will be required. 
 

7.4 Contract scoring should also be designed in such a way to ensure that contract outcomes are 
delivered from across the supply chain, rather than consuming a large amounts of officer time 
scoring submissions.  

 
7.5 Where suppliers are able to provide verified Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) ratings, 

these could also be scored by procuring officers and managers as part of their tender evaluation. A 
clear scoring methodology should however be defined to establish a consistent baseline and to 
quantify how suppliers’ differing quality standards or, for example, Fairtrade credentials, should also 
be assessed. 
 

7.6 An example scoring matrix is provided in the table below: 
 

Example Tender Criteria Example Policy 
weighting (%) 

Tiered greenhouse gas pass / fail questions  Pass / Fail 

Cost 35 

Quality  25 

Reducing environmental footprint 20 

Delivering benefits to society 10 

Driving economic growth 10 

Total 100 

 

7.7 Procuring managers will be expected to apply tender weightings as above from 1st October 2023, 
+/- 5%.  Managers seeking to diverge from this policy will need to apply for a waiver. 

8.0 Desired outcomes 
 

8.1 It is anticipated that by including broader social values in the Council’s procurement, the desired 
example outcomes identified in the table below will be realised: 

 
 
 

34



 

11 
 

Social Value 
Corporate 

Theme 
Corporate Aim 

 
Desired Outcomes 
Procured activities should, in the delivery of the contract: 
 

Reduce 
Environmental 
Footprint 

Green 
Borough 

Excellent environment 
for all 

 Provide a clean, attractive and desirable environment for residents, employees and visitors  

 Influence staff, suppliers, customers and communities through the delivery of the contract to 
support environmental protection and improvement 

 Deliver additional environmental benefits including aligning with the Council’s Climate and 
Environmental Emergency targets 

Minimising waste and 
managing resources 

 Consume less and ensure maximum value is generated from any waste produced 

 Consider the carbon and waste hierarchies, to favour options with the least associated carbon 
emissions and waste (reduce, repurpose, reuse, refurbish or repair) 

Deliver  
Benefits to  
Society 

Healthy 
Community 
 

Enabling healthier 
lifestyles / wellbeing 

 Provide better physical and mental health and wellbeing  

 Treat all employees fairly and not discriminate against any group in its employment practices 

 Demonstrate action to support the health and wellbeing of residents, workers and visitors to the 
Borough, including physical and mental health 

 Provide a safe work environment, abiding by laws and regulations and health and wellbeing 

Tackling deprivation  Demonstrate action to identify and tackle inequality in employment, skills and pay 

 Consider all impacts on groups with protected characteristics 

 Demonstrate action to identify and manage the risks of modern slavery in the delivery of the 
contract, including in the supply chain 

 Create employment opportunities particularly for those who face barriers to employment and/or 
who are located in deprived areas 

Drive  
Economic  
Growth 

Prosperous 
Place 
 

Enabling the right skills 
and employment mix 

 Add value to the community in which the project is based 

 Support current and future business needs and stimulate sufficient economic growth 

 Demonstrate collaboration throughout the supply chain, and a fair and responsible approach 

 Influence staff, suppliers, customers and communities through the delivery of the contract to 
support resilience and capacity in the supply chain 

 Attract businesses and skills and increased job security and satisfaction 

 Create opportunities for entrepreneurship and help new, small organisations to grow, supporting 
economic growth and business creation 

 Create employment and training opportunities, particularly for people in industries with known 
skills shortages or in high growth sectors 

 Support educational attainment relevant to the contract, including training schemes that address 
skills gaps and result in recognised qualifications 

 Create skills and training and apprenticeships opportunities through the delivery of the contract 

35



 

12 
 

9.0 Embedding social values 
 
9.1 To be successful, relevant and proportionate social value requirements should be considered 

throughout the whole commissioning, procurement and contract management process.  

9.2 The table below outlines when and how social value principles could also be considered when 
purchasing. Responsible officers and managers may not need to undertake all of the activities 
shown, as they are only a guide. 

 

Procurement 
Stage 
 

Where How 
 

Commissioning  
 

Stakeholder 
consultation 

 Liaise with those impacted by the contract to 
identify where social value might have the greatest 
impact  

 Consider how previous contracts have worked / 
learning 
 

Pre-market 
engagement 

 Liaise with the market to understand whether social 
value considerations are proportionate and relevant  

 Identify if there are new ways of commissioning the 
service 
 

Specification  Link social values to the Council’s corporate 
themes, aims and desired outcomes 
 

Procurement Tender 
documents 

 The bid should detail any contractual elements in 
relation to social value and Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) 
 

Evaluation  Ensure that social value questions are scored in 
accordance with the pre-defined scoring in 
Appendices A and B 
 

Contract award  Ensure that the contract is properly prepared to 
embed the relevant social value commitments into 
the terms 
 

Post tender 
receipt, 
evaluation and  
contract award 

Preparation of 
selection and 
award criteria 

 Tender documents should be scored in accordance 
with the pre-defined scoring in Appendices A and B 

Key 
Performance 
Indicators 

 Ongoing contract and performance management to 
measure success against contract (see Monitoring 
below) 
 

Review of 
success 

 Review areas that were successful or not to help 
shape future requirements 
 

36



 

13 
 

10.0 Buying standards 
 

10.1 Responsible officers and managers who are procuring goods, services and works should now also 

set specific standards for the products they purchase. Procurers should strive to achieve, as a 

minimum, the best practice standards, which go further than the mandatory standards identified 

within the Government Buying Standards (GBS). In some circumstances the current Council 

standards may exceed the best practise GBS, in which case this practise should continue. 

 
10.2 The GBS are a set of dynamic product specifications which have been developed as mandatory for 

central government departments over time and encouraged for the wider public sector. The 
individual standards developed within the GBS have been done so with input from across 
government, industry, and wider stakeholders. In addition, the standards have been extensively 
reviewed with market research and analysis to establish criteria that take long-term cost 
effectiveness and market capacity into account. 

 
10.3 The GBS are outlined by sector in Appendix D and can be accessed via sustainable procurement: 

the Government Buying Standards (GBS) area on the Government website. 
 
10.4 Responsible officers and managers should also consider the longer-term best value lifecycle of the 

products that they purchase, the principle of ‘buy once, buy right’, economies of scale (buying in 
bulk, where relevant) and should also familiarise themselves with, and request, the right to repair 
within their procurement exercises where possible. The right to repair regulations aim to increase 
producer responsibility, reduce energy usage and electrical waste, and enable consumers to identify 
the most energy efficient products on the market. To assist responsible officers, some sources for 
further information are provided below as examples: 

 
For more information on the right to repair regulations, visit the right to repair regulations on the 

Government website; 
Form more information on energy labels and lifecycle costs of products, visit the energy label 
website. 
 

10.5 Further to the GBS, and as identified in paragraph 5.2, the Council also reaffirms its long-standing 
policy recognising the critical role of peatlands by not knowingly using compost that contains peat in 
the borough and it seeks to ban the use of unsustainably sourced materials or consumables such 
as palm oil and other virgin products where deforestation or natural habitat destruction has taken 
place for its production.  

 
10.6 Responsible officers, managers and procurers should therefore not knowingly purchase any 

compost that contains peat and should also phase out and replace any unsustainable consumables 
where deforestation or natural habitat destruction has taken place for its production. To assist 
responsible officers, some sources for further information are provided below as examples: 

 
For more information on peat free, visit the peat free organisation website; 
For more information on sustainable palm oil, visit the Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Oil website; 
For more information on the use of sustainable timber, visit the Forest Stewardship Council website.  

 

10.7 For further assistance on buying standards please liaise with the Council’s Climate Change 
Manager and Sustainability Officer. 

11.0 Monitoring 
 

11.1 Supplier greenhouse gas emission reports should be reported annually to the Council’s respective 
contract manager, Climate Change Manager, Sustainability Officer and Procurement and Insurance 
Officer on the phased in basis out previously outlined. 

37

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/sustainable-procurement-the-government-buying-standards-gbs
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/sustainable-procurement-the-government-buying-standards-gbs
https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-9302/CBP-9302.pdf
https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-9302/CBP-9302.pdf
https://energylabel.org.uk/
https://energylabel.org.uk/
https://peatfree.org.uk/
https://rspo.org/about
https://fsc.org/en


 

14 
 

11.2 Future monitoring will better establish a carbon baseline for which more stringent targets will be set. 
In the future, the Council will also seek to assess the carbon intensity of its procured goods and 
services. 

11.3 Responsible officers and managers will also need to establish a meaningful and proportionate 
method of measuring the wider social value criteria adopted as part of the contract throughout the 
lifetime of a contract, to complement their usual reporting practises. The adopted indicators should 
be reported to the Climate Change Manager, Sustainability Officer and Procurement and Insurance 
Officer on a quarterly basis from contract award.  

11.4 The table below provides examples of the types of potential measures that could be used, although 
responsible officers and suppliers are encouraged to adopt others as appropriate.  

11.5 Procuring managers seeking to diverge from this policy will need to apply for a waiver. 

Social Value Example Measures / Outcomes 
 

Reducing 
environmental 
footprint 

 Creation of green infrastructure  

 Increase of biodiversity  

 Waste reducing practices  

 Reducing the use of fossil fuelled transport 
 

Delivering 
benefits to 
society 

 Demonstrating a commitment to work practices that improve staff wellbeing 

 Diversity training offered for contractors and suppliers 

 Contracts within the supply chain which demonstrate social value 
commitment 

 Initiatives taken to support all groups of people to build a stronger community 

 Number of hours volunteering time provided to support local community 
 

Driving 
economic 
growth 

 Number of local people employed 

 Number of apprentices 

 Number of jobs created for those with disabilities 

 Number of training opportunities 

 Number of hours dedicated to support young people into work 
 

Employment 
and skills 
 

One Horton Heath suppliers with contracts valued at over £1 million will also be 
expected to support each of the four pillars outlined below. For more information 
on the One Horton Heath Social Value, Employment and Skills Toolkit, visit 
pages 8-12 of the toolkit on the Eastleigh Borough Council website. 
 
1. New jobs 
2. Careers education enrichment programme 
3. Employability enrichment programme 
4. Charity / voluntary sector / small business enrichment programme 

 

 

12.0  Compliance 

 
12.1 The Council’s Constitution was approved in November 2021 and Part 4 sets the Council’s 

overarching principles and rules of procurement. All officers should familiar themselves with these 
before commencing procurement. These principles, and the Council’s current procurement process 
will continue to operate us usual.   

 
12.2 The Council’s Procurement Policy incorporates principles detailed within several additional 

documents including the: 
 

38

https://www.onehortonheath.co.uk/social-value


 

15 
 

 National Procurement Strategy for Local Government (2018) which sets out local government’s 
ambitions and priorities focusing on three core themes; leadership; behaving commercially and 
achieving community benefits. For more information visit the National Procurement Strategy for 
Local Government (2018); 

 Procurement Policy Note (PPN 06/21) which takes account of carbon reduction plans in public 
procurement. For more information visit the Procurement Policy Note (PPN 06/21); 

 Procurement Policy Note (PPN 05/21) which takes account of human rights in public 
procurement. For more information visit the Procurement Policy Note (PPN 05/21); 

 Procurement Policy Note (PPN 06/20) which takes account of social value in public 
procurement. For more information visit the Procurement Policy Note (PPN 06/20); 

 Modern Slavery Act (2015) which helps to fight against modern slavery. For more information 

visit the Modern Slavery Act (2015); 

 Social Value Act (2013) which requires all public sector organisations, and their suppliers, to 

look beyond the financial cost of a contract and consider how the services they commission and 

procure might improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of an area. For more 

information visit the Social Value Act (2013); 

 Equality Framework for Local Government which is a framework to ensure that Local Authorities 

are compliant with equality legislation. For more information visit the Equality Framework for 

Local Government; 

 The Social Value: Employment and Skills Toolkit which helps to enable discussions between the 

Council and its partner organisations involving support for local employment and skills initiatives. 

For more information visit the Social Value: Employment and Skills Toolkit; and 

 Transforming Public Procurement which aims to improve the way public procurement is 

regulated. For more information visit Transforming Public Procurement. 

12.3  As detailed within the previous Procurement Policy, all Council staff should also continue to 

undertake the following: 

 Follow Contract Standing Orders for up-to-date guidance on procurement procedures; 

 Provide free and unrestricted electronic availability of all procurement documents on the portal, 
as per the Contract Standing Orders; and 

 Align all procurement activities to this Procurement Policy. 
 

13.0  Contact details 
 

13.1 Council employees 

For further information and assistance on the Policy for Council employees, please contact the 

Procurement and Insurance Officer via raising a case in Salesforce to Procurement Advice. 

13.2 Suppliers    

For further information and assistance on the Policy for Council suppliers, please visit the 

Procurement pages on the on the Eastleigh Borough Council website. 

  

39

https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/financial-resilience-and-economic-recovery/procurement/national-procurement-strategy
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/financial-resilience-and-economic-recovery/procurement/national-procurement-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-0621-taking-account-of-carbon-reduction-plans-in-the-procurement-of-major-government-contracts
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-0521-national-procurement-policy-statement
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-0620-taking-account-of-social-value-in-the-award-of-central-government-contracts
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/modern-slavery-bill
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-value-act-information-and-resources/social-value-act-information-and-resources
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/equality-framework-local-government-eflg-2021
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/equality-framework-local-government-eflg-2021
https://www.onehortonheath.co.uk/social-value
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/transforming-public-procurement
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/9800/part-4-rules-of-procedure.pdf
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/transparency-code/procurement


 

16 
 

Appendix A – Flowchart checklist for procuring officers 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Is the 

procurement 

really 

needed? 

Can we 

procure in a 

different 

way? 

Ensure the specification for 

goods and/or service meets 

the relevant buying standards, 

if applicable 

 

(see Appendix D) 

Add additional, relative and 

proportionate social value 

criteria weightings into tender 

evaluation process for scoring 

  

(see Appendix C) 

Set pass / fail greenhouse gas 

emission reporting 

requirements 

 

(see Appendix B) 

 

START HERE 

 

Review need to procure 

goods and/or service 

 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

No 

40



 

17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Ensure annual greenhouse 

gas emissions reports are 

submitted 

(see Appendix B) 

AND 

 

Set and report wider social 

value Key Performance 

Indicators as part of 

monitoring 

 

(see p.13-14) 

41



 

18 
 

Appendix B – Mandatory carbon reduction assessment questions 
 
To be introduced from 1st October 2023: 

 

1. Have you done a Scope 1 & 2 Greenhouse Gas assessment of your business? 
 

i. If yes, please provide us a copy 
 

ii. If no, do you commit to doing a scope 1 & 2 Greenhouse Gas assessment of your business within 
6 months? 
 

a. If yes, supplier passes this question 
b. If no – sorry, this is a pre-qualification requirement 

 
 
To be introduced from 1st April 2024: 

 
2. Have you done a Scope 1, 2 & 3 Greenhouse Gas assessment of your business? 

 
i. If yes, please provide us a copy  

 
ii. If no, do you commit to doing a scope 1, 2 & 3 Greenhouse Gas assessment of your business 

within 6 months? 
 

a. If yes, supplier passes this question 

b. If no – sorry, this is a pre-qualification requirement 

 

To be introduced from 1st April 2025: 

 
3. Have you done a Scope 1, 2 & 3 Greenhouse Gas assessment of your business and adopted a carbon 

reduction plan? 
 

i. If yes, please provide us a copy 
 

ii. If no, do you commit to doing a scope 1, 2 & 3 Greenhouse Gas assessment of your business and 
adopting a carbon reduction plan within 6 months? 

 
a. If yes, supplier passes this question 

b. If no – sorry, this is a pre-qualification requirement 

  

42



 

19 
 

Appendix C – Example template for evaluation of social value 

 
 
Social Value  
 

 
Weighting 
 

 
Reduce Environmental Footprint 

 

 
20% 

 
Conserving resources, including the use of energy, water and materials  
 
  

50% 

Reducing waste and increasing reuse within their goods, services and operations  
 
 

50% 

 
Deliver Benefits to Society 
 

 
10% 

 
Complying with International Labour Organization (ILO) principles in respect to human 
rights and conditions of employment  
 

14.3% 

Ensuring that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any of their supply 
chains and in any part of their business  
 

 
14.3% 

Ensuring that our procured goods and services, and the supply chains that our suppliers 
use are ethically sourced (therefore in a morally good and correct manner) 
 

 
14.3% 

Ensuring that our procured goods and services are equitable and accessible to service 
users 

 

 
14.3% 

Ensuring appropriate workplace behaviour 
 
 

 
14.3% 

Ensuring compliance with equalities legislation 
 
 

 
14.3% 

Aligning their aims and ambitions with the Council’s Equality and Diversity Strategy  
 
 

 
14.3% 

 
Drive Economic Growth 
 

 
10% 

 
Supporting local job creation and facilitating opportunities for small-and-medium-sized 
enterprises (SMEs) and social businesses with local spend and employment where 
possible 
 

33.3% 

Actively reducing the life-cycle cost of products 
 
 

33.3% 

Providing the living wage (at a minimum) to employees and contractors 
 
 

33.3% 

 

43



 

20 
 

Appendix D – Buying standards  

 

Product category Types of products / services 
included 

Link to relevant 
Government Buying 
Standard 

Cleaning  cleaning products 

 cleaning services 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for cleaning 
products and services 

Electrical goods  air conditioning units 

 condensing units 

 domestic gas 

 non-domestic gas 

 lamps 

 lighting 

 fridges and freezers 

 commercial refrigeration 

 covers, sliding doors, curtains for 
refrigeration units 

 dishwashers 

 electrical ovens 

 tumble dryers 

 washer dryers 

 washing machines 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for electrical goods 

Office furniture  refurbishment 

 spare parts 

 materials 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for furniture 

Horticulture and park services  soil improvers 

 media products 

 plants 

 hydraulic fluids and chainsaw 
lubricants 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for horticulture and 
park services 

ICT equipment  computer monitors 

 desktop computers 

 inkjet computers 

 laptops  

 laser multi-functional devices 

 laser printers 

 scanners 

 workstations 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for office ICT 
equipment 

Paper and paper products  envelopes 

 paper 

 tissue paper 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for paper and 
paper products 

Textiles  materials 

 dyes 

 chemicals 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for textiles 

Transport vehicles  zero/ultra-low emissions 

 safety 

 telematics 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for transport 
(vehicles) 

Construction projects and buildings  new build construction and major 
refurbishment 

 air conditioning 

 central heating systems 

 combined heat and power systems 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for construction 
projects and buildings 

44

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-cleaning-products-and-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-cleaning-products-and-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-cleaning-products-and-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-electrical-goods
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-electrical-goods
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-furniture
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-furniture
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-horticulture-and-park-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-horticulture-and-park-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-horticulture-and-park-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-office-ict-equipment
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-office-ict-equipment
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-office-ict-equipment
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-paper-and-paper-products
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-paper-and-paper-products
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-paper-and-paper-products
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-textiles
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-textiles
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-transport-vehicles
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-transport-vehicles
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-transport-vehicles
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-gbs-for-construction-projects
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-gbs-for-construction-projects
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-gbs-for-construction-projects


 

21 
 

 condensing units 

 domestic gas boilers 

 lamps 

 lighting control gear 

 lighting systems 

 non-domestic boilers 

 paint and varnishes 

 rainwater harvesting 

 showers, lamps, toilets and urinals 

 vehicle wash water reclaim units 

 water efficient industrial cleaners 

 windows 

 wood products 

Water using products  dishwashers 

 rainwater harvesting equipment 

 showers, taps, toilets and urinals 

 vehicle wash water reclaim units 

 washer dryer 

 washing machines 

 water efficient industrial cleaners 

 procurers note for water-using 
products 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for water-using 
products 

Food and catering  food and catering services 

 nutrition standards 

Sustainable procurement: 
the GBS for food and 
catering services 

 
 

45

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-water-using-products
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-water-using-products
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-water-using-products
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-food-and-catering-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-food-and-catering-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurement-the-gbs-for-food-and-catering-services


This page is intentionally left blank



Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

 

Title of EqIA: 
 

Procurement Policy 

Brief description of the 
Proposal: 

The purpose of the Procurement Policy is to introduce and inform 
all Council employees, procuring managers, suppliers’ and 
contractors of the Council’s new expectations in relation to 
procuring goods and services in a more sustainable way.  
 
This includes through considering the wider environmental, social 
and economic benefits when procuring goods and services, and 
in particular the Council’s suppliers’ carbon emissions.     
 

Summary of Impacts 
and Issues: 

Any future procurement of goods, services or works may have 
the potential to impact on people across all groups of protected 
characteristics, depending on the procurement exercise at the 
time. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework to guide future 
procurement which seeks to promote additional environmental, 
social and economic values within the delivery of a contract. 
 
Communication, education and monitoring to embed the 
Procurement Policy into future contracts will be critical to its 
success. 
 
Any future impacts to any of the groups of protected 
characteristics, together with their possible solutions and 
mitigating factors will continue to be reported separately as the 
procurement of goods, services or works will continue in the 
usual way. 
 

Potential Positive 
Impacts: 

The Procurement policy sets a framework to guide future 
procurement to promote additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a contract.  
 
It is anticipated that the Procurement Policy will assist in 
delivering greater positive impacts across all the groups of 
people with protected characteristics. 
 

What engagement or 
consultation has been 
carried out?  

Internal and external engagement has been undertaken with: 
 
Internal 
 
Key staff and teams, in person, during sustainability appraisals  
All staff on Staff Hub survey 
Procurement Executive Group 
Climate Change Board 
 

47



Officers and Teams including: 
 
Corporate Director – Chief Financial Officer 
Executive Head of Environment 
Executive Head of Governance 
Project Director, One Horton Heath 
Employment and Skills Manager, One Horton Heath 
Strategic Planning Manager 
Climate Change Manager 
Strategic Planning and Development Team  
Local Area Managers 
Head of Economy and Business 
Horton Heath – Employment and Skills Manager 
Head of Building Construction 
 
External 
 
40 x current / recent Council suppliers during supplier survey  
 
Public consultation is not required to adopt the Procurement 
Policy. It updates the Council’s procurement policy already in the 
public domain and any future procurement which will require 
decisions(s) will continue to be reported in the usual way. 
 

 

Assessment 

For all of categories below please consider: 

1. Does this proposal eliminate unlawful discrimination? 

2. Does this proposal advance equality of opportunity between people who share 

a protected characteristic and those who do not share it?  

3. Does this proposal foster good relations between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it? 

48



Statutory Considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on people with protected characteristics.  

Impact Assessment Details of Impact  Possible Solutions/ Mitigating Factors 

Age: Likely positive impact: 
 
As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 
will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society.   
 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 
to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 
     

Disability: Likely positive impact: 
 
As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 
will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society.   
 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 
to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 

49



     

Gender reassignment: 
 

Likely positive impact: 
 
As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 
will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society.   
 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 
to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 
     

Marriage and civil partnership: 
 

Likely positive impact: 
 
As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 
will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society.   
 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 
to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 
     

50



Pregnancy and maternity: Likely positive impact: 
 
As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 
will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society.   
 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 
to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 
     

Race: Likely positive impact: 
 
As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 
will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society.   
 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 
to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 
     

Religion or belief: Likely positive impact: 
 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 

51



As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 
will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society.   
 

to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 
     

Sex: 
 

Likely positive impact: 
 
As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 
will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society.   
 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 
to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 
     

Sexual Orientation: Likely positive impact: 
 
As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 
to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 

52



will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society.   
 

 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 
     

Social deprivation - please highlight what 
impact could there be on people 
experiencing social deprivation: 

Likely positive impact: 
 
As part of delivering and embedding the Policy, 
through its future procurement activities, the Council 
will seek to favour suppliers who actively deliver 
additional benefits to society and the economy.   
 

Any future procurement of goods / 
services or works may have the potential 
to impact on people within this group of 
protected characteristics. 
 
The Procurement Policy sets a framework 
to guide future procurement to promote 
additional environmental, social and 
economic values within the delivery of a 
contract. 
 
Communication, education and 
monitoring to embed the Procurement 
Policy into future contracts will be critical 
to its success. 
     

Other significant Impacts: NONE 
 

NONE 

 

 

53



Action Plan   

Activity  Outcome Timeframe Person responsible 

Monitoring how the Procurement 
Policy is being embedded across 
the Council 

Procurement Policy principles are 
embedded and delivered within 
future contracts resulting in 
additional benefits in the delivery 
of contracts to environment, 
society and economy. 
 
 

Ongoing with particular attention 
to review annual progress.  

Executive Head for Governance, 
Procurement Executive Group 
(PEG), Climate Change Manager, 
Sustainability Officer  

Monitoring mandatory carbon 
reduction Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) 

All suppliers above current tender 
threshold provide greenhouse gas 
emission reports (on a phase in 
basis) to allow the Council to 
better understand (and make 
plans to reduce) the carbon 
footprint of the suppliers’ it uses. 
 

Ongoing with particular attention 
to review annual progress.  
 
 

Executive Head for Governance, 
Procurement Executive Group 
(PEG), Climate Change Manager, 
Sustainability Officer 

Monitoring wider environmental, 
social, and economic KPIs, as 
selected for the delivery of 
individual contracts 
 

Future suppliers provide wider 
environmental, social, and 
economic KPIs, as selected by 
responsible officers / managers 
for the delivery of individual 
contracts. 
 
Suite of adopted KPIs (and 
Policy) reviewed over time to 
ensure procurers and suppliers 
are embedding these principles.  
 

Ongoing with particular attention 
to review annual progress.  
 

Executive Head for Governance, 
Procurement Executive Group 
(PEG), Climate Change Manager, 
Sustainability Officer 

Providing sustainability standards 
advice to colleagues across the 

All teams and departments across 
the Council procure goods, 

Ongoing, as required. Climate Change Manager, 
Sustainability Officer 

54



Council as required 
 

services and/or works to at least 
the defined minimum 
specification.  
 

Procurement Policy to feature as 
part of staff awareness raising 
and training 
 

All Council staff are made aware 
of the principles of the 
Procurement Policy and Policy 
becomes embedded across all 
Council procurement. 
 

Ongoing, as required. Executive Head for Governance, 
Procurement Executive Group 
(PEG), Climate Change Manager, 
Sustainability Officer 

 

Lead Officer: Mike Culver, Strategy Development Senior Specialist (Environment) 

Manager: Diccon Bright, Strategic Planning Manager 

Corporate Director: Natalie Wigman, Corporate Director 

Date completed: 07 October 2022 

 

 

55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

 

   

 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

1 November 2022 

CABINET 

8 December 2022 

Corporate Fees and Charges 

Report of the Strategic Planning Manager  

 

Recommendation(s) 

For Audit and Resources Committee: 

It is recommended that the Audit and Resources Committee note the proposed fees 
and charges and make any necessary recommendations to Cabinet. 

For Cabinet: 

It is recommended that Cabinet approve all proposed fees and charges in 
Appendices A to I to come into effect on the dates outlined in the report.  
 

Summary 
 
Fees and Charges for Council services are reviewed on a regular basis. In accordance 
with the Budget Plan, fees and charges levied by the Council are reviewed annually with 
the intention of any changes being introduced, where possible, with effect from January 
2023.  This report contains the fees and charges for services directly overseen by Cabinet.  
The increases in this report will be budgeted to achieve an additional yield of £552,074 in 
2023/24 which is in line with the Medium-Term Financial Plan.   
 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 

Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003 

Environmental Protection Act 1990 

 

57

Agenda Item 6



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. This report relates to a range of Corporate Plan objectives and the Council’s 
principle of operating in a business-like, commercially focussed way. The 
report reflects the Council’s approach to minimise the levels of (compulsory) 
Council Tax while seeking to cover Council costs from fees and charges from 
discretionary services.  

2. The proposals in many areas promote health and wellbeing by setting 
discounted rates for community or non-commercial groups; they also help 
tackle deprivation by providing discounted rates for individuals experiencing 
socio-economic deprivation. The report reflects the Council’s Climate and 
Emergency and Excellent Environmental objectives in applying the highest 
possible penalties for environmental offences such as littering, flyposting and 
graffiti. 

Introduction 

3. The purpose of this report is to outline proposed changes to corporate fees 
and charges levied for services by the Council and approved by Cabinet.  A 
minimum increase in yield of 10.1% for all fees and charges should be 
implemented, where possible, from January 2023, reflecting the national CPI 
level of inflation as of July 2022. 

4. Service Managers consider their fees and charges in the context of service 
development in addition to recognising the Council’s policy to generate 
additional funds by way of maximising the yield from all income sources.   

5. There are other fees and charges within the Council’s Budget to which an 
inflationary increase cannot apply.  These income streams are mainly grants 
or related to contracts and therefore cannot be increased to raise further 
income. 

6. Changes in demand that arose during the COVID-19 pandemic continue with 
respect to off-street parking (see below). In many areas there is uncertainty 
relating to current national economic factors including the Cost of Living 
Emergency. The Council’s usual financial monitoring processes will track 
actual performance and any budget adjustments will reported to Cabinet and 
incorporated into the Medium-Term Financial Plan. 

Budget Devolution 

7. Councillors should note that following Cabinet approval in September 2012, 
the following services are devolved to Local Area Committees and therefore 
the fees and charges for these areas are now set by those Committees: 

 Car Parking (off street); 

 Cemeteries; 

 Itchen Valley and Lakeside Country Parks; 

 Outdoor sports facilities. 
 

58



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 (Allotments no longer appear on this list due to transfers to parish 
councils.) 

 
8. Local Area Committees have the discretion to set fees for services devolved 

to their Areas, subject to compliance with the corporate target to generate an 
additional minimum yield from fees and charges of 10.1%. 

9. Car parking (off-street) income continues to recover, in most areas, but user 
behaviour remains difficult to predict, generally because of hybrid working 
environment for office-based workers. The current cost-of-living crisis is also 
having an unfavourable impact on car parks’ usage. The corporate yield target 
has been applied to this area, however an ongoing review by the Parking 
Working Group will determine the correct level of pricing for off-street car 
parks and devolved budgets will be adjusted accordingly. (On-street parking 
fee levels are to be determined by Hampshire County Council, following the 
notice to withdraw the Agency Agreement with the Council.) 

Services Managed Directly by Cabinet 

10. There are a number of services that are overseen by Cabinet and these 
services are listed below with their respective appendix references. 
 
 

 

  

Appendix Description 

A Arts and Culture  

B Neighbourhood Services 

C Health and Wellbeing 

D Housing and Development 

E Environment 

F Economic Development 

G Asset Management  

H Strategic Planning, and Governance 

I Local Operations 

59



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Arts and Culture (Appendix A) 

11. Arts and Culture staff have reviewed the fees and charges and the proposed 
increases are in line with other market providers.  All other fees and charges 
have been amended based on what is considered an acceptable level for the 
client base. Theatre hire for performance & conferences will only have one 
rate as opposed to the usual community and commercial rate. Where 
settlements exceed an agreed level a proportion of the settlement will be 
retained, representing a commercial hire. This is expected to increase the 
amount of income generated by the service.   
 

Neighbourhood Services (Appendix B) 

12. Due to the termination of the Highways Agency Agreement some of the 
Engineering and Parking fees and charges will cease from the 1 April 2023. 

13. Garden Waste Service: The Executive Head of Neighbourhood Services has 
reviewed the fees and charges for this service and recommends that the 
various Garden Waste Service charges are increased. For example, a 
standard 50-week service for a new user will increase by 9.76% (£4.00) to 
£45.00. The increase would generate an additional income of £103,540 

14. Trade waste: Increases of individual contract charges do vary across the 
existing customer base dependent on the value of the contract and the 
existing yield which the contract delivers. In total, trade waste charges are 
expected to provide an additional increased yield of £95,900 which equates to 
10.1%. 

15. Tree Nursery: Charges for sponsorship of tree planting are being reviewed, 
with two planting days scheduled for the last quarter of the financial year and 
further events likely to be held in 23/24.  Charges will be set as part of 
planning for these events, such that yield targets and the objectives of the 
Tree Nursery business case are achieved   

16. Car parking income has been recovering but remains below 50% of 
prepandemic levels; user behaviour has changed, generally because of 
homeworking or hybrid working patterns of office-based workers. Income 
levels may be reduced by the current cost-of-living crisis which is also having 
an unfavourable impact on car parks’ usage. However the Council has 
included a 10.1% yield increase, but the Parking Working Group will review 
the income strategy during the financial year and adjust as necessary. Any 
changes will be reported to Cabinet. 

17. All other proposed fees and charges in Neighbourhood Services are in line 
with the recommended level of 10.1%.  
 

Health and Wellbeing (Appendix C) 

60



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

18. Places Leisure Eastleigh: The operator (Places for People) and Council staff 
have reviewed the charges for January 2023 onwards taking into account 
usage trends, operational costs, recent investments, competitors’ pricing 
policies and the customer’s ability to pay.   
 

19. Proposals were presented to the Places Leisure Eastleigh Consultative Group 
on the 4 October 2022 and proposed charges were approved by this Group 
for consideration by Cabinet. 

 
20. The fees and charges at The Hub leisure centre at Bishopstoke Road playing 

fields will increase by the corporate yield target of 10.1% from 1 April 2023.   

 
21. Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) Licensing fees were not increased 

during the initial 5-year cycle, which will end in 2023. The charge will be 
increased by up to 44%; such an increase is now necessary to bring Eastleigh 
Borough Council charges in line with other local authorities across Hampshire 
and to accurately reflect the actual resources needed to process an 
application and administer the HMO licensing scheme. The remainder of the 
housing fees have been increased to reflect the 10.1% yield target.  

 
22. Caravan site licensing charges are recommended to increase by the 10.1% 

yield target. 

 
Housing and Development (Appendix D) 

23. The overall fees increase for Development Management will generate an 
additional 15% income. It is difficult to predict with great accuracy the income 
as the rate of planning applications may be affected by national economic 
conditions. In recognition of the complexity and value of the pre-application 
process the greatest increase in fee, and resultant income, is focused within 
this area. 
 

24. A modest increase in Land Charges is proposed to cover increased costs, 
primarily associated with services provided by Hampshire County Council. 
Overall income for this service has reduced as “non-fee earning” personal 
searches are becoming increasingly common.  

 
Environment (Appendix E) 

25. Many of the Environmental charges are set nationally through legislation. 
Other fees and charges have generally been increased in line with costs and it 
is anticipated that in total the service will generate an income yield increase in 

61



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

line with the corporate target through demand. 
 

26. Animal Welfare and Collection of Stray Dogs: Animal Welfare and Collection 
of Stray Dogs: Charges have been amended based on an updated projection 
of staff time and the costs associated with this. An exercise has been 
undertaken to simplify and reduce the number of fees and charges here to 
better reflect what is advertised.  

27. Due to the complexity of the Licenses fees and charges the Administration 
Committee will be approving the 2023 charges at the next committee. Due to 
this, Licenses (for Pleasure Boats, Hackney Carriages, and miscellaneous 
licences) are not included in this report.  

28. Councillors will be aware that the administration of the Taxi and Hackney 
Carriage Licensing Service transferred to Southampton City Council in 2016.  
The service is a ring-fenced service and is required to break even.   

 

Economic Development (Appendix F) 

29. The Sorting Office has moved to a new location therefore creating some new 
charges related to the rent of the space. For other charges relating to the 
economy i.e., Environmental Health training courses and various vendor 
licences, it is proposed by the Head of Economy and Business to increase the 
price by 10.1% and it is anticipated that in total the service will generate an 
income yield in line with the corporate target. 
 

 

Asset Management (Appendix G) 

30. The Asset Management Service fees have been increased by 10.1% to match 
the required yield. These prices are still deemed to be reasonable in the 
market. The fee for administration on garage lettings has been increased by 
50% to reflect the actual cost of this work. 
 

31. Fees for chargeable Legal work are proposed to be increased by between 20-
25% depending on the nature of the work. 

 
32. The Council proposes to increase fees for hiring meeting rooms at Eastleigh  

House in line with the corporate yield target of 10.1%. 

 
33. The Council intends to introduce new charges for events requiring use of 

Council land or staff time.  Charges are currently being considered as part of 
the detailed budget planning process and will be set in proportion to the size 
and complexity of the event. 

62



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
Governance and Strategic Planning (Appendix H)  

34. Fees for these areas include charges for paper copies of the Local Plan, 
roundabout sponsorship, and Elections. Roundabout sponsorship fees are 
being increased by 4.9%, with the yield being met due to increased demand 
for sponsorship which will be achieved through staff efforts to obtain new 
sponsorship.  

 

Local Operations (Appendix I) 

35. The Local Response Team currently undertake the deployment of the Speed 
Limit Reminders (SLRs) / Speed Indicator Devices (SIDs) for the Local Area 
Committees.  The fee has been increased to £85 to achieve the yield target of 
10.1%. 

 

Risk Assessment 

36. There is always a risk that proposed charges will not yield the overall 
anticipated 10.1% additional income target for the Budget.  The impact of 
changing the fees and charges needs to be balanced against the impact on 
demand, giving rise to changes in overall yield; this will be monitored closely 
during the quarterly Corporate and Financial Performance processes 
throughout the year. 
 

37. Where the Council is increasing fees, in combination with the general 
inflationary and interest rate pressures on business and household finances 
arising from the national economy, there may be a reduction in use of fee-
charging services.  

Financial Implications  
 

38. The table below shows the estimated income yield increases across services 
for 2023 as a result of the proposed fees and charges. Further work on future 
income levels for services will be completed as part of the upcoming budget 
process which will review all income levels. 
 

Arts and Culture £19,458 

Neighbourhood Services £382,883  

Health and Wellbeing £2,665 

Housing and Development £127,280 

Environment £5,317 

63



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

  

 

 

 

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

39. Any service equality and diversity implications will have been considered by 
service managers as part of their Service Planning processes.  There are no 
specific equality and diversity issues associated with this report which simply 
presents a summary of Cabinet-controlled fees and charges.  

 

40. The Council must reflect the cost of services in its changes to fees, 
particularly where the service is discretionary and residents have the choice 
not to use the service or use a commercial provider.  However, the Council is 
keen to play its part in addressing the Cost of Living Emergency. Where 
concessionary rates are offered (Garden Waste, Bulky Waste, Pest Control), 
the fee increase is proposed to be less than the increase for the non-
concessionary rate.  

 

Climate and Environmental Emergency implications 

41. Climate and Environmental Emergency implications are predominantly 
managed through the service planning process.  

 

Conclusion 

42. The Council undertakes an annual review of all fees and charges.  Where 
possible, the review reflects the Council’s Budget requirement to achieve an 
increase of 10.1% in yield.  The above increases will be budgeted to achieve 
an additional yield of £552,074 in 2023/24.  Where possible, fees and charges 
will be increased with effect from January 2023.   

 

DICCON BRIGHT 

Strategic Planning Manager  

 
Date: 12 October 2022 
Contact Officer: Diccon Bright  
Tel No: 023 8068 8436 

Economic Development £11,946 

Asset Management  £1,025 

Local Operations £1,500 

Total £552,074 

64



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

e-mail: Diccon.bright@eastleigh.gov.uk  
Appendices Attached: 9: A to I (in one pdf document) 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None 
 

65



This page is intentionally left blank



Fees and Charges for 2023
ARTS AND CULTURE Appendix A

The Point Theatre and The Berry and Meeting Rooms Charges 

Theatre Hire From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Monday – Sunday 11 hours per day 900.00 7.78% 65.00
Weekly hire rate – midday on 1st day to midnight on 7th day Max 60 
hours access 4900.00 7.69% 350.00

Additional hourly rate 165.00 10.00% 15.00
Additional hourly rate pre 9am post-midnight 250.00 16.28% 35.00
Auditorium: Conference hire up to 4 hours 420.00 12.00% 45.00
Auditorium Conference hire up to 8 hours 650.00 11.11% 65.00

Dance Studio – all charges are per hour or part hour From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
COMMERCIAL
Per hour 50.00 19.05% 8.00
Per hour (Series Booking) 45.00 12.50% 5.00
Per 3 hour session 120.00 14.29% 15.00
All day session 10am – 5pm 210.00 10.53% 20.00
Dance Studio – all charges are per hour or part hour From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
COMMUNITY
Per hour 35.00 12.90% 4.00
Per hour (Series Booking) 32.00 10.34% 3.00
Per 3 hour session 80.00 9.59% 7.00
All day session 10am – 5pm 137.00 9.60% 12.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Irving Room/Wilde Room 17.50 9.38% 1.50
Studio Theatre 33.00 10.00% 3.00
Studio Theatre for Performance 45.00 12.50% 5.00
Conference Room 25.00 8.70% 2.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Irving Room/Wilde Room 27.00 12.50% 3.00
Studio Theatre 45.00 9.76% 4.00
Studio Theatre for Performance 60.00 17.65% 9.00
Conference Room 33.00 13.79% 4.00

Creation Centre – Rate From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Community
Creation Space – ½ Day 190.00 8.57% 15.00
Creation Space – Day 350.00 7.69% 25.00
Creation Space – Day including evening 525.00 8.25% 40.00
Creation Space – Weekly 3000.00 9.09% 250.00
Atrium – Hourly 26.00 8.33% 2.00

Creation Centre – Rate From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Commercial
Creation Space – ½ Day 330.00 13.79% 40.00
Creation Space – Day 520.00 11.83% 55.00
Creation Space – Day including evening 780.00 12.23% 85.00
Creation Space – Weekly 4500.00 9.22% 380.00
Atrium – Hourly 31.00 14.81% 4.00
Foyer From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Community – Evening 230.00 9.52% 20.00
Standard - Evening 300.00 11.11% 30.00
Commercial Events From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Starting from
Large Wedding: Peak 3800.00 18.75% 600.00
Large Wedding: Off Peak 2200.00 15.79% 300.00
Small Wedding: Peak 1900.00 18.75% 300.00
Small Wedding: Off Peak 1300.00 18.18% 200.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Technician 18.00 9.09% 1.50
4 hour Pre-rig with 2 technicians 175.00 12.90% 20.00
5 hour basic plotting with 2 technicians 200.00 29.03% 45.00
Show day rehearsal and 1 show 550.00 34.15% 140.00
Radio Mic 1 day 12.50 19.05% 2.00
Radio mic 2 days 25.00 61.29% 9.50
Radio Mic weekly 62.50 10.62% 6.00
Metro deck blocks 9.00 20.00% 1.50
Blocks 2 day 15.00 42.86% 4.50
Blocks week 35.00 12.90% 4.00

Meeting Rooms - Hourly Rate - Community 

Meeting Rooms – Hourly Rate – Commercial

 Technical Charges

67



Hazer 25.00 19.05% 4.00
Hazer 2 days 40.00 11.11% 4.00
Hazer week 95.00 11.76% 10.00
Followspot 35.00 12.90% 4.00
Followspot 2 days 52.00 11.83% 5.50
Followspot week 165.00 10.00% 15.00
Projector 68.00 9.68% 6.00
Projector 2 day 110.00 12.24% 12.00
Projector weekly 275.00 6.59% 17.00
Projection screen  Small 18.00 16.13% 2.50
Projection screen  Large 29.00 11.54% 3.00
Projection screen 2 day  Small 29.00 11.54% 3.00
Projection screen 2 day  Large 45.00 9.76% 4.00
Projection screen week 90.00 9.76% 8.00
Small PA 1 Day Hire 95.00 53.23% 33.00
Small PA Weekend Hire 125.00 62.34% 48.00
Med PA 1 Day Hire 150.00 72.41% 63.00
Med PA Weekend Hire 175.00 54.87% 62.00
Large PA 1 Day Hire 250.00 61.29% 95.00
Large PA Weekend Hire 350.00 118.75% 190.00
MAC Book Pro 1 Day 55.00 175.00% 35.00
MAC Book Pro 2 Day 65.00 62.50% 25.00
MAC Book Pro Week 135.00 12.50% 15.00
Techpro Radio and Comms pack 6 radios and Belt pack 1 Day 50.00 138.10% 29.00
Infrared Conference mics x 20 1 Day 150.00 70.45% 62.00
Infrared Conference mics x 40 1 Day 250.00 61.29% 95.00
LED Pars or strips (indoor) x4 (per 2 day hire) 50.00 42.86% 15.00
LED Pars x6 (small) Outdoor IP rated (per 2 day hire) 70.00 40.00% 20.00
LED Pars x8 (Large) Outdoor IP rated (per 2 day hire) 85.00 112.50% 45.00
LED Battery Uplighters x9 in charging case (per 2 day hire) 95.00 72.73% 40.00

Incentives & Discounts
Discounts/incentives are available to encourage new customers or incentivise repeat bookings 

From 1 April 2023, a restoration levy of £1.50 will be added to the ticket prices of our professional, films and hirer events.

Theatre Hire
For hires where the settlement outcome exceeds £8,000 10% of tickets sales above £8,000 will be retained by the venue.
Any PPL/PRS charges are passed on to the hiring company once the quarterly return is complete.
Credit card transaction fees will be passed on to hiring groups.

Creation Centre 

Hire of the Creation Space includes the use of the ground floor 
complex which includes the Green Room and the Dressing 
Room/Company Office.

Studio Series Classes

Minimum booking of 10 sessions.  Studio booking charges include 
PRS cover for the use of recorded music in classes and the inclusion 
of a class in The Point’s promotional brochure.

Deposit

A non-returnable deposit of 10% of the total hire charge is payable at the time of booking.

Cancellations

8 months notice
6 months notice
Less than 6 months notice

Community rate
This is offered at the venue's discretion, but would usually be offered to local not for profit community groups and charitable organisations.

Neighbourhood Services Appendix B

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

First Item 35.00 16.67% 5.00
Each additional item 20.00 33.33% 5.00
First Item - concession 22.00 10.00% 2.00
Each additional item - concession 11.00 10.00% 1.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Trade Waste Charges Various N/A N/A
From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Garden waste service (first  bin) April – March (50 wks) 45.00 9.76% 4.00

Garden waste service (first bin) April – March (50 wks) Concession 35.00 9.38% 3.00

Bulky items

Trade Waste

Special Collections

68



Garden waste service (after first bin price per bin) April – March (50 
wks) 42.00 10.53% 4.00

Garden waste service (after first bin price per bin) April – March (50 
wks) Concession 29.00 9.43% 2.50

Garden waste service (first  bin) Oct – March (25 wks) 35.00 9.38% 3.00

Garden waste service (first bin) Oct – March (25 wks) Concession 29.30 8.52% 2.30

Garden waste service (after first bin price per bin) Oct – March (25 
wks) 34.00 9.68% 3.00

Garden waste service (after first bin price per bin) Oct – March (25 
wks) Concession 27.70 8.63% 2.20

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

140/240 litre 20.00 0.00% 0.00
1100 litre 40.00 0.00% 0.00
Additional black waste sacks not contained within the  1100 litre bin – 
communal properties 4.00 0.00% 0.00

Replacement of residual (black) wheeled bins should the bin go 
missing or be damaged 28.00 7.69% 2.00

Delivery Bins (Companies and New Developments) 32.00 10.34% 3.00
Up to 1-8 set then £25 thereafter for each 8 set 28.00 12.00% 3.00
Introduce charges for lost Recycling bins 28.00 N/A N/A
Lost External Food bins 10.00 N/A N/A
Lost Food Caddies 5.00 N/A N/A
Lost Glass boxes 8.00 N/A N/A
Vehicle Workshop From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Pre Purchase Car Inspection 95.00 N/A N/A
MOT 54.85 0.02 0.85
Car Loan Inspections 84.00 95.00 11.00
Printed test certificate 10.00 N/A N/A

Streetscene
Abandoned Shopping Trolleys From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
(per trolley) 
Collect & Return (By Prior Agreement) 23.50 0.00% 0.00
Pest Control Service (all Inc. VAT) From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Domestic Premises
General Advice Visit – domestic property 45.00 50.00% 15.00
General Advice Visit – domestic property people on defined benefits 
Concession 10.00 0.00% 0.00

Rats – domestic property (up to 3 visits) 160.00 N/A N/A
Mice – domestic property (up to 3 visits) 150.00 N/A N/A
Rats – domestic property (additional visits/visit) 50.00 117.39% 27.00
Mice – domestic property (additional visits/visit) 50.00 117.39% 27.00
Rat/mice treatment for people on defined benefits. Concession. 20.00 48.15% 6.50
Wasp Treatment – domestic property (1st nest) 65.00 22.64% 12.00
Wasp nest (additional nests) 27.00 22.73% 5.00
Wasp treatment revisit if wasp resistant 40.00 N/A 40.00
Flea Treatment – per hour, up to 5 bedrooms. 125.00 0.81% 1.00
Flea Treatment – per hour, after 1st hour. 75.00 5.63% 4.00
Insects – for 1st hour. 126.00 0.80% 1.00
Insects – per hour, after 1st hour 75.00 5.63% 4.00
Any pest visit where the PCO is unable to gain access as agreed 
(additional cost to treatment) 50.00 257.14% 36.00

Cancellation Fee - All treatments 25.00 N/A N/A
Pest Control Service (all inc. VAT) From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Business Premises 

Rodent control - business premises under contract To be quoted on site by site basis by PCO N/A N/A

Rodent control - business premises under contract – additional visit To be quoted on site by site basis by PCO N/A N/A

Rats & Mice - business premises not under contract – general advice 
visit To be quoted on site by site basis by PCO N/A N/A

Rats & Mice - business premises not under contract – hourly rate 
after initial visit To be quoted on site by site basis by PCO N/A N/A

Wasps - Business premises under contract To be quoted on site by site basis by PCO N/A N/A

Wasps (1st nest) 75.00 27.12% 16.00
Wasps (each additional nest) 55.00 120.00% 30.00
Fleas for 1st hour 150.00 11.11% 15.00
Fleas – per hour after 1st hour 85.00 11.84% 9.00
Insects for 1st hour 150.00 11.11% 15.00
Insects – per hour after 1st hour 85.00 11.84% 9.00

STREETSCENE DESCRIPTION OF OFFENCE WHO CAN ISSUE 
FPNs Amount £

Section & Legislation

s.6(1) Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 Nuisance parking Local authority 
authorised officers

Amount fixed at 
£100

s.2A(1) Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978 Abandoning a vehicle Local authority 
authorised officers

Amount fixed at 
£200

Collection of missed bins not put out for collection by residents  
and collection of contaminated bins

69



s.88(1) Environmental Protection Act 1990 Litter

Litter authority 
authorised officers, 

including persons not 
directly employed by the 
authority (see paragraph 

13 below); Policy 
Community Support 

Officers and other 
persons accredited 
under Community 

Accreditation Schemes 
under the Police Reform 

Act 2002

Can be set at 
local level 

(between £50 -
£80). Default 

£80

s.94A(2) Environmental Protection Act 1990 Street litter control notices and litter clearing 
notices

Principal litter authority 
authorised officers

Can be set at 
local level 

(between £75 -
£100). Default 

£100

Schedule 3A, para. 7(2) Environmental Protection Act 1990 Unauthorised distribution of literature on 
designated land

Principal litter authority 
authorised officers, 

including persons not 
directly employed by the 
authority (see paragraph 

13 below)

Can be set at 
local level 

(between £50 - 
£80). Default 

£80

s.43 Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 Graffiti and fly-posting

Local authority 
authorised officers, 

including persons not 
directly employed by the 
authority (see paragraph 

13 below); PCSO and 
other persons 

accredited under 
Community 

Accreditation Schemes 
under the Police Reform 

Act 2002.

Can be set at 
local level 

(between £50 - 
£80). Default 

£80

S 5B(2) Control of Pollution (Amendment) Act 1989 Failure to produce authority (waste carrier’s 
licence)

Waste collection 
authorities and 

Environment Agency 
(acting through their 

Officers

Amount fixed at 
£300

s.34A(2) Environmental Protection Act 1990 Failure to furnish documentation (waste 
transfer notes)

Waste collection 
authorities and 

Environment Agency 
(acting through their 

officers)

Amount fixed at 
£300

s.47ZA(2) Environmental Protection Act 1990 Offences in relation to waste receptacles
Waste collection 

authority authorised 
officers

Can be set at 
local level 

(between £57-
£110). Default 

£110

s.59(2) Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 Offences under Dog Control Orders

Authorised officers of 
primary and secondary 

authorities, including 
persons not directly 

employed by the 
authority, PCSO and 

other persons 
accredited under 

Community 
Accreditation Schemes 

under the Police Reform 
Act 2002

Can be set at 
local level 

(between £50 - 
£80). Default 

£80

s.73(2) Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005

Failure to nominate key-holder (within an 
alarm notification area) or to notify local 

authority in writing of nominated key-holder’s 
details

Local authority 
authorised officers, 

including persons not 
directly employed by the 

authority

Can be set at 
local level 

(between £50 - 
£80). Default 

£80

S.6(5) Health Act 2006 Failure to display no smoking signs Local authority 
authorised officers

Amount set at 
£200 reduced 
to £150 if paid 
within 15 days

S.7(2) Health Act 2006 A person who smokes in a smoke-free place 
commits an offence.

Local authority 
authorised officers

Amount set at 
£50 reduced to 

£30 if paid 
within 15 days

Gardening Scheme From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

16 Visits from March - October TBC N/A N/A

Trees From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

70



Tree Sponsorship Various N/A N/A

Highways
From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Individual Application 550.00 10.00% 50.00
Charitable bodies & community organisations - Application for one 
event during year 200.00 676.70% 174.25

Charitable bodies & Community organisations - Individual 
Applications in following first event 250.00 1.21% 3.00

Charitable bodies - Programme of more than 2 events if booked in-
bloc in advance (Up to 8 events) 530.00 3.92% 20.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Tables and chairs on the highway - renewal 100.00 0.00% 0.00
Pavement Licences 100.00 0.00% 0.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Private Property Lining & Signing POA N/A N/A
From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Change of property name 80.00 15.94% 11.00
New Development of 1 - 2 plots n/a N/A N/A
New Development of 3 - 5 plots 153.00 3.17% 4.70
New Development of 6-10 plots 273.00 2.94% 7.80
New Development of 11 -20 plots 437.00 2.97% 12.60
New Development of 21 or more 24.00 N/A N/A
New postal address for an individual property 85.00 14.56% 10.80
Change to new addresses due to the development changing after the 
schedule has been issued (Per Plot) 25.75 0.00% 0.00

Change to new address due to the development changing after the 
schedule has been issued (Per plot) 25.75 0.00% 0.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Supply of Street Name Plates POA N/A N/A
Supply of Litter Bins POA N/A N/A
Redesign\New Design of Car Parks POA N/A N/A

HEALTH AND WELLBEING Appendix C

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

House Inspection Fee re immigration compatibility 300.00 4.17% 12.00
Additional charge for revisit due to missed appointment by client 65.00 14.04% 8.00

HMO Licensing (Houses in Multiple Occupation) – up to 5 occupants 1300.00 44.44% 400.00

HMO Licensing (Houses in Multiple Occupation) – over 5 occupants 35.00 per additional occupant up to a 
maximum of 1,600.00 N/A N/A

HMO Licensing (Houses in Multiple Occupation) – supplying existing 
plans 110.00 22.22% 20.00

Housing Health Check Visit 115.00 6.48% 7.00
Fee for service of Improvement Notice 550.00 6.80% 35.00
Fee for service of Prohibition Order 550.00 6.80% 35.00
Fee for service of Emergency Prohibition Order 550.00 6.80% 35.00
Fee for service of Emergency Remedial Notice 550.00 6.80% 35.00
Fee for reviewing Suspended Prohibition Order and Improvement 
Notice 190.00 11.76% 20.00

Caravan Sites From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
                                                                                                        
Caravan Site Licence Application base fee* 560.00 12.00% 60.00
Caravan Site Variation of Licence/Conditions Request 220.00 29.41% 50.00
Caravan Site Transfer of Licence Request 220.00 29.41% 50.00
Annual Administration of Site Licence base fee* 300.00 4.17% 12.00
Service of Compliance Notice 550.00 6.80% 35.00
Service of Works in default Notice 550.00 6.80% 35.00
Service of Emergency Works Notice 550.00 6.80% 35.00
*Cost of Inclusion on fit & proper person register 315.00 31.25% 75.00
*Cost of depositing site rules with Local Authority 0.00 N/A 0.00

*   % increase/reduction in fee based on size of site

No. of Homes %
0 – 10 -20
11 – 20 -10
21 – 30 0
31 – 40 10
41 – 50 15
51 – 100 20

100 + 25

Street Naming and Numbering

Housing (all Inc. VAT)

Road Closure for Public Events - first application

Additional Highway Enquiries

Access Marking Charges

Street Name Plates - Developments

2 Discount applied to fee based on rating assessment

71



Band %
A -50
B -10

C-E 0

3 Discount applied to fee for non-commercial sites

Reduction of base fee for non-commercial (family only) occupied sites -30%

Places Leisure Eastleigh From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Hire of Equipment
Hire charge 3.10 5.08% 0.15
Centre - Wide Membership
Joining 35.00 10.94% 3.45
Family 1000.00 5.76% 54.45
Single 520.00 9.94% 47.00
Gym
Casual Gym 8.50 0.00% 0.00
Group Ex & Les Mills
Step Reebok - off peak 7.40 10.45% 0.70
Step Reebok - peak 7.80 6.12% 0.45
Aerobics-off peak 7.40 10.45% 0.70
Aerobics- peak 7.80 6.12% 0.45
Aquacise-peak 7.80 6.12% 0.45
Badminton - per hour
Peak 14.00 62.79% 5.40
Off Peak Adult 9.50 46.15% 3.00
Off Peak Junior 4.30 10.26% 0.40
Squash per 40 minutes
Peak 9.45 9.88% 0.85
Off Peak Adult 7.15 10.00% 0.65
Off Peak Junior 3.15 10.53% 0.30
Squash Club 8.50 6.25% 0.50
Table Tennis - per hour
Adult 5.35 10.31% 0.50
Junior 2.60 10.64% 0.25
 Main Hall 5 courts
Adult - peak 76.85 6.00% 4.35
Adult - off peak 60.00 9.09% 5.00
Off peak Junior 31.25 10.04% 2.85
Special Activities
Studio per hour 58.00 6.13% 3.35
Forever Active 5.25 1.94% 0.10
Forever Active Additional Gym 2.00 11.11% 0.20
Active Play and Bounce Parent + 1 4.40 10.00% 0.40
Active Play and Bounce Additional Child 2.00 37.93% 0.55
Artificial Turf Full Pitch - per hour
Peak Adult 91.50 6.21% 5.35
Peak Junior 56.50 9.71% 5.00
Off Peak Adult 48.60 10.08% 4.45
Off Peak Junior 31.30 10.21% 2.90
All Weather Pitch - per hour
Peak Adult 50.00 5.49% 2.60
Peak Junior 26.50 9.50% 2.30
Peak Junior (FA Charter) 22.60 10.24% 2.10
Off Peak Adult 36.00 10.43% 3.40
Off Peak Junior 16.50 12.24% 1.80
Friday Night Soccer 0.00 N/A 0.00
Netball (Outdoor per court per hour)
Peak Adult 25.00 9.65% 2.20
Peak Junior 8.80 10.00% 0.80
Off Peak Adult 9.90 10.00% 0.90
Off Peak Junior 4.10 10.81% 0.40
Football
Pitch - Adults (90 min game) 88.00 10.00% 8.00
Pitch - Juniors (Under 18- 90 min game) 38.00 9.51% 3.30
Mini soccer pitch (40 min game) 14.30 10.00% 1.30
Bowls
Singles, pairs, triples or rinks per hour 6.50 10.17% 0.60
Woods - per hour or part hour 1.80 9.09% 0.15
Season ticket (May-Sept) 152.00 6.29% 9.00
Season ticket (Oct-Apr) Scapagreen 82.00 9.92% 7.40
Season ticket (May - Sept) OAP 79.80 10.07% 7.30
Season ticket (Oct-Apr) Scapagreen 41.60 10.05% 3.80
Junior rink per hour per person 3.50 11.11% 0.35
Season ticket junior 38.00 9.51% 3.30
Swimming
Adult 5.85 6.36% 0.35
Junior 3.00 9.09% 0.25
Family Swim 2 Ad + 3 Jun 14.50 10.27% 1.35

Reduction for outcome of rating assessment

72



Pool Hire
Both Pools 163.00 10.14% 15.00
Main Pool 112.00 9.80% 10.00
Teaching Pool 61.50 9.82% 5.50
1 lane 22.00 10.00% 2.00

The Hub with the effect from 1 April 2022

Activity or Equipment Hire From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Tennis per Hour 8.80 10.00% 0.80
Tennis per Hour 4.40 10.00% 0.40
Tennis per Hour 6.60 10.00% 0.60
Tennis per Hour 2.80 12.00% 0.30
Basketball Flood Lights 9.60 9.71% 0.85
AWP Full 64.90 10.00% 5.90
AWP Full 50.60 10.00% 4.60
AWP Full 36.80 9.85% 3.30
AWP Full 26.60 9.92% 2.40
AWP Half 40.70 10.00% 3.70
AWP Half 28.90 9.89% 2.60
AWP Half 19.80 10.00% 1.80
AWP Half 13.60 9.68% 1.20
Sports Hall Per Hour 39.60 10.00% 3.60
Sports Hall Per Hour 33.00 10.00% 3.00
Studio per Hour 29.50 10.07% 2.70
Table Tennis per 55 mins 7.70 10.00% 0.70
Table Tennis per 55 Mins 5.70 10.68% 0.55
Table Tennis per 55 mins 6.60 10.00% 0.60
Table Tennis per 55 mins 3.70 8.82% 0.30
Badminton per Court per hr 12.70 10.43% 1.20
Badminton per Court per hr 7.60 10.14% 0.70
Badminton per Court per hr 8.80 10.00% 0.80
Badminton per Court per hr 4.00 11.11% 0.40
Racquet Hire 1.80 9.09% 0.15
Shuttles/Balls per tube hire 1.80 9.09% 0.15

Adult Rates = Age 16+

HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT Appendix D

PLANNING From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Planning application fee 0.00 N/A N/A
Planning performance agreement 0.00 N/A N/A
Permitted development enquiry 104.00 15.56% 14.00
Article 4 Direction 64.00 16.36% 9.00
Copy of plans - A4 0.22 10.00% 0.02
A3 0.33 10.00% 0.03
Larger than A3 4.40 10.00% 0.40
Additional copies 0.00 N/A N/A
Planning Decision Notices 0.00 N/A N/A
Copies of Tree Preservation Orders 63.50 14.41% 8.00
Copy of Section 52/106 Agreements Free of charge on website or 55.50 N/A N/A
Design Access Statement per Page 1.66 10.67% 0.16
Personal searches 0.00 N/A N/A
Section 52/106 compliance check 236.00 15.12% 31.00
Planning Condition Compliance Check 226.00 10.24% 21.00
Comprehensive Planning Site 175.00 14.75% 22.50
Hedge Conciliation 834.00 13.47% 99.00
Hedge Conciliation - Concession 224.00 14.87% 29.00
Weekly list of applications: From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

One week 19.00 15.15% 2.50
Yearly subscription 720.00 10.77% 70.00
Planning Obligations From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

S106 - variation 629.00 14.36% 79.00
Pre-application Advice Fees From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

House Holder Pre-Application Enquiry 104.00 15.56% 14.00
Pre Application for a change of use 479.00 14.05% 59.00
Pre-application advice – small minor 1 335.00 15.52% 45.00
Pre-application advice – large minor 2 540.00 14.89% 70.00
Pre-application advice – major 3 25% of planning application fee N/A N/A
Pre-application advice – large major 4 25% of planning application fee N/A N/A
Additional Meetings – Householder pre-app and small minor (1) 130.00 16.07% 18.00
Additional Meetings – large minor (2), change of use 180.00 13.92% 22.00
Additional Meetings – major (3 and 4) 255.00 15.91% 35.00

73



Condition pre-application advice (Non Householder) 115.00 21.05% 20.00
Land Searches From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Full Official Search (Hard Copy) 214.00 10.31% 20.00
Full Official Search (Electronic) 214.00 10.31% 20.00
LLC1 (Hard Copy) 50.20 1.01% 0.50
Part II enquiries (Hard copy or electronic) 23.00 6.98% 1.50
Part II Question 2 Commons Registration 32.00 0.00% 0.00
Part I enquiries – additional parcels of land 29.00 11.54% 3.00
Further copies of searches 17.50 6.06% 1.00
Personal Searches (statutory) Free N/A N/A
Personal Searches – Photocopying See charges under planning N/A N/A
Refresher search within 6 months only 104.00 9.47% 9.00
Solicitors own enquiry 28.50 11.76% 3.00
Building Control From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Building regulation fees Various N/A N/A

Environment Appendix E

Animal Welfare From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Breeding of Dogs 
Application - New 330.00 20.00% 55.00
Application - Renewal 280.00 9.80% 25.00
Compliance - New 150.00 12.78% 17.00
Compliance - Renewal 100.00 -24.81% -33.00
Home Boarding 
Application - New 200.00 29.03% 45.00
Application - Renewal 165.00 23.13% 31.00
Compliance - New 135.00 20.00% 22.50
Compliance - Renewal 110.00 -2.22% -2.50
Boarding & Day Car 
Application - New 290.00 7.41% 20.00
Application - Renewal 215.00 -15.69% -40.00
Compliance - New 170.00 30.77% 40.00
Compliance - Renewal 75.00 -44.44% -60.00
Exhibition Animals
Application - New 340.00 13.33% 40.00
Application - Renewal 255.00 -10.53% -30.00
Compliance - New 210.00 5.00% 10.00
Compliance - Renewal 180.00 -12.20% -25.00
Pet Shops
Application - New 360.00 -12.20% -50.00
Application - Renewal 330.00 -14.29% -55.00
Compliance - New 210.00 2.44% 5.00
Compliance - Renewal 185.00 -9.76% -20.00
Home Franchise
Application - New 122.50 0.00% 0.00
Application - Renewal 122.50 0.00% 0.00
Franchisee
Application - New 105.00 0.00% 0.00
Application - Renewal 105.00 0.00% 0.00
Horse Riding 
Application - New 290.00 -4.92% -15.00
Application - Renewal 250.00 -12.28% -35.00
Compliance - New 175.00 66.67% 70.00
Compliance - Renewal 70.00 -33.33% -35.00
Additional per horse 11.00 N/A N/A
Collection of Stray Dogs From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
(Kennelling Fees)
Collection only (no kennelling) 94.00 6.82% 6.00
One days kennelling 114.00 5.56% 6.00
Two days kennelling 134.00 3.88% 5.00
Three days kennelling 154.00 3.36% 5.00
Four days kennelling 174.00 2.35% 4.00
Five days kennelling 194.00 1.57% 3.00
Six days kennelling 214.00 1.42% 3.00
Seven days kennelling 234.00 0.86% 2.00
Administrative fee for kennelling 10.00 -2.91% -0.30

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Appendix F

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Level 2 Food hygiene/health and safety refresher course (public 
courses per person) 43.00 10.26% 4.00

Level 2 Food hygiene/health and safety course (public courses per 
person) 93.00 10.06% 8.50

Food Safety/Health and Safety

74



Level 3 Food hygiene/health and safety course (public courses per 
person) 432.00 10.20% 40.00

Commercial Training courses To be negotiated based on hourly rate/costs N/A N/A

Surrender certificates (disposal of food) 266.00 9.92% 24.00
Certificates in respect of foodstuffs for export 106.00 10.42% 10.00
Imported food stuffs Cost of sampling/disposal & officer time N/A N/A
Primary authority work. 77.00 10.00% 7.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Food premises rescores 170.00 9.68% 15.00
Skin Piercing - premises and 1 practitioner 165.00 10.00% 15.00
Skin piercing – registration fee for additional practitioners 41.00 10.81% 4.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Single event (Two days or less per event.  Max two days or 20 hours 
in any year per applicant/business) 15.00 11.11% 1.50

Single Event (Three to seven days in a block) 55.00 10.00% 5.00
Annual Consent / Licence (One day/night per week) 792.00 9.85% 71.00
Annual Consent / Licence 2 days / nights per week) 902.00 10.13% 83.00
Annual Consent / Licence 3 days / nights per week) 1007.00 10.05% 92.00
Annual Consent / Licence 4 days / nights per week) 1118.00 10.15% 103.00
Annual Consent / Licence 5 days / nights per week) 1224.00 10.07% 112.00
Annual Consent / Licence 6 days / nights per week) 1332.00 10.08% 122.00
Annual Consent / Licence 7 days / nights per week) 1442.00 10.08% 132.00

Revenues
Court Costs 110.00 12.24% 12.00
Charging orders 0.00 N/A 0.00

Economic Development
Sorting Office residents – open unit per month 0.00 N/A N/A
Sorting Office residents – lockable units p/m 0.00 N/A N/A
Basement 5.2 85.00 8.97% 7.00
Basement- 16.3 180.00 2.86% 5.00
Ground 10.5 170.00 8.28% 13.00
Ground 37.5 158.00 N/A N/A
First 10.5 170.00 8.28% 13.00
First 20.3 163.00 N/A N/A
Second 8.7 162.00 24.62% 32.00
Second 17.6 149.00 N/A N/A
Sorting Office Open Studios – stall hire with table 83.00 10.67% 8.00
Sorting Office Open Studios – stall hire with own table 78.00 11.43% 8.00
Sorting Office Open Studios – 4 foot space 56.00 12.00% 6.00
Market stall gazeebo hire 25.00 25.00% 5.00
Sponsorship 0.00 N/A N/A

ASSET MANAGEMENT Appendix G

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Surveyor’s fees (excluding any Legal fees) for agreeing terms for a 
deed of easement, right of way Minimum Charge of £565 N/A N/A

Surveyor’s fees (excluding any legal fees) for the valuation and terms 
for the removal/variation of a restrictive covenant

  Escalating subject to scale of 
development.£285 minimum fee where a 

simple letter of consent is issued for 
alterations to former council house.  A charge 

of £50 where the alteration is to a disabled 
person's dwelling house to improve access, 

safety, comfort etc

N/A N/A

Administration fee to review initial enquiries/requests from residents 
to purchase Council land/reversionary freehold interests

Minimum £180.  Then capital receipt subject 
to negotiation. N/A N/A

Surveyors fees to (excluding any legal fees) for the valuation and 
agreement of terms for the sale of Council land Minimum Charge of £565 N/A N/A

Surveyor’s fees (excluding Legal fees) involved in obtaining Landlord 
consent to tenant requests Minimum charge £400 up to max fee tbc. N/A N/A

Administration Fee non refundable for garage lettings £100 plus Vat N/A N/A
From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £

Chargeable Legal Work to include inter alia prosecutions; property 
work and planning obligations Between £150 and £245 per hour N/A N/A

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Eastleigh House – Meeting Room Hire Rates

Room Hire Rate 1 – Up to 10 persons
Per Hour 18.40 10.18% 1.70
Per Half Day (no more than 4 Hours) 55.50 10.12% 5.10
Per Day 97.80 10.14% 9.00
Evenings 61.20 10.07% 5.60

Legal Services

Food Premises Register

Street Trading Licences/Consents

Asset Management Services

75



Double Room Hire Rate 2 – Up to 20 persons Boardroom or 50 
persons Theatre
Per Hour 30.90 9.96% 2.80
Per Half Day (no more than 4 Hours) 91.70 10.08% 8.40
Per Day 158.40 10.08% 14.50
Evenings 97.80 10.14% 9.00
Triple Room Hire Rate 3 – Up to 26 persons Boardroom or 60 
persons Theatre
Per Hour 36.90 9.82% 3.30
Per Half Day (no more than 4 Hours) 110.20 10.09% 10.10
Per Day 208.70 10.07% 19.10
Evenings 115.60 10.10% 10.60
Catering Services for External Meetings
Provided by HC3S – Tel. 01962 573609

GOVERNANCE AND STRATEGIC PLANNING Appendix H

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Roundabout Sponsorship
Cost per sign per year 
(Subject to concession for multiple purchases) 1390.00 4.91% 65.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Planning Policy
Local Plan 142.00 10.08% 13.00

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
Elections 
Copies of election expenses (parliamentary) .20p per slide (statutory) N/A N/A

Electoral Register (full and open) - Paper copy £10 admin fee + £5 per 1000 electors (or 
part) statutory N/A N/A

Electoral Register (full and open) - Data copy £20 admin fee + £1.50 per 1000 electors (or 
part) statutory N/A N/A

Marked Registers (polling stations & absent voters) - Paper copies £10 admin fee + £2 per 1000 electors (or 
part) statutory N/A N/A

Marked Registers (polling stations & absent voters) - Data copies £10 admin fee + £1 per 1000 electors (or 
part) statutory N/A N/A

LOCAL OPERATIONS Appendix I 

From 1/1/23 £ Change % Change £
SLR\SID
Deploying the SLR\SID for external 85.00 13.33% 10.00
Organisations Per Deployment

76



 

 

 
AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

1 November 2022 

INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING STATEMENT  

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2022 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 

Report of the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting)  

 

Recommendations  

It is recommended that Audit and Resources Committee considers the Internal 
Audit Monitoring Statement for the second quarter of 2022/23. 

 

 

Summary 
 

 The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 was approved by this Committee on 8 
March 2022. Progress made against the plan for quarter 2 is now reported 
(Appendix A). 

 Progress made on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations is 
detailed in Appendix B. 

 

Statutory Powers 
S.151 Local Government Act 1972 
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 
 
 

 

 

77

Agenda Item 8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s risk 
management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant, work 
effectively and support ambitions of the Council.  Internal Audit helps the 
Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control processes. 

Introduction 

2. The Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 was approved by this Committee on 8 March 
2022. Performance against the Annual Audit Plan for 2022/23 will be reported 
to Members of the Committee periodically throughout the year as per the 
Internal Audit Charter which was approved by this Committee on 8 March 2022. 
This report is the second monitoring statement for the current financial year 
(2022/23) and outlines audit activity for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 September 
2022, as summarised in appendices A and B. 

Resources 

3. From 1 April 2022 the in-house Internal Audit Team comprises a Chief Internal 
Auditor (currently vacant and being covered by the Senior Internal Auditor), 
Senior Internal Auditor (1.0 FTE currently vacant) Internal Auditors (1.3 FTE – 1 
FTE permanent, 0.3 casual) and an Internal Audit Apprentice (1.0 FTE).  

4. The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 requires 650 days, which will be 
resourced in house.   

Internal Audit Activity  

5. Appendix A shows an analysis of planned days against actual days for the 
period 1 July 2022 to 30 September 2022. The Plan remains fluid and flexible 
and continues to be closely monitored by the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting). 
Further revisions may be necessary over the coming months and any revisions 
to the Plan will be agreed with this Committee.   

6. During quarter 2, a total of 3.5 days was provided by the Internal Audit Team to 
support the Covid-19 response. 

7. During the second quarter the following reviews carried forward from 2021/22 
continued and will be subject to comment in a later Monitoring Report: 

 Cash Collection and Banking (at draft) 

 Housing Benefits and Council Tax Support (at draft) 

 Local Taxation (Council Tax and NNDR) (at draft) 

 Accounts Receivable 

78



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Housing Developments – One Horton Heath FUR 

8. During the second quarter the following review was completed from the 
2021/22 Annual Internal Audit Plan: 

 Accounting System – the review has concluded that the council’s 
accounting system is adequate. There are no material concerns with 
system access or ledger code generation. Adequate assurance can 
also be given for compliance to statutory accounting requirements and 
adherence to the Council’s Constitution and Standing Orders regarding 
delegated responsibilities and preparation and presentation of the 
Council’s financial records. Recommendations have been made 
concerning income suspense clearance, improved reconciliation 
processes and ensuring consistent and appropriate journal referencing.  

9. During the second quarter the following reviews from the 2022/23 Annual 
Internal Audit Plan commenced which continue into the third quarter and will be 
subject to comment in a later monitoring report: 

 Business Applications 

 Accounting for Fixed Assets 

 Enforcement 

10. During the second quarter the following review from the 2022/23 Annual 
Internal Audit Plan continued and will be subject to comment in a later 
Monitoring Report: 

 Risk Management (at draft) 

11. During the second quarter the following reviews were completed from the 
2022/23 Annual Internal Audit Plan: 

 Governance - Local Government Transparency Code 2015 - The Local 
Government Transparency Code 2015 requires the Council to make a 
series of quarterly, annual, and one-off data publications. This review 
found no issues with the Council’s reporting of one-off data 
requirements. Recommendations have been made regarding the current 
arrangements for quarterly and annual data publications to ensure the 
council is complying with its publication requirements under the Code. 
These recommendations are currently being implemented.  

 Grants to Sponsored Bodies – SLA Review –The Council provides 
annual funding grants to two sponsored bodies; One Community and 
Citizens Advice Bureau, and has in place signed Service Level 
Agreements (SLAs) which are monitored on a quarterly basis. EBC also 
delivers its grant funding quarterly as per the terms of the SLAs. This 
review has found that the quality of monitoring information provided by 
the bodies could be improved. As a result, an observation has been 
made that future versions of the SLAs specify not only the information to 

79



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

be provided but also in what form it should be provided. In addition, a 
series of observations have been made to improve the internal 
administration of sponsored bodies grants.,  

12. During the quarter Internal Audit continued working with officers responsible for 
the development of new systems and processes and, as reported to this 
Committee previously, is responsible for reviewing and commenting upon 
systems of internal control prior to going live.  

Audit Recommendations 

13. Appendix B provides details of the recommendations that remain outstanding 
from the 2019/20, 2020/21 and 2021/22 internal audits, along with the level of 
assurance given.  It will develop over the coming year as 2022/23 audit work is 
completed. 

 
14. At the time of writing this report three priority 2 (high risk) recommendations 

remain outstanding from 2021/22, one priority 2 (high risk) recommendation 
from 2020/21 and one priority 2 (high risk) recommendation from 2019/20. The 
Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) is currently satisfied that appropriate action is 
being taken to address the outstanding recommendations and considers that 
there are no matters that require escalation or further input from this 
Committee. 

 
15. 2021/22 Audit Reviews: 

 Bank Reconciliation FUR – (One priority 2 Recommendation) The bank 
reconciliation still has an immaterial unreconciled balance. The Executive 
Head of Finance & Housing Programme has advised he is comfortable with 
this balance based on the level of risk it represents; however, work continues 
to resolve the processing issues within the system which are causing the 
small imbalance but is not currently recognised as a high priority. 
 

 Payroll – (One priority 2 recommendations) Our review has concluded that 
there is a limited assurance for certain controls in place within the Payroll 
system. Two overarching recommendations were made to improve controls 
around monthly payroll duties by more independent checks, audit trails and 
the use of exception reports and to address and improve resilience and 
capacity within the team, particularly to assist the duties of the Payroll 
Manager and provide absence cover. A supplementary management report 
has been issued dealing with the more specific individual findings which 
need to be addressed.  

 Planning Fees FUR – (One priority 2 recommendation) A follow up review of 
Planning Fees was carried out to re-examine outstanding priority 2 
recommendations from the 2019/20 Planning Fees audit review. This was to 
establish the current position with Planning Fees (notably reconciliation) and 
what action has been taken to resolve the issues. A priority 2 
recommendation has been made that the current issues, preventing income 
and refund reconciliation for planning fees from the Council’s financial 

80



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

systems to the Salesforce Development Management system, are to be 
resolved and reconciliation to be undertaken on a regular basis. 

 
2020/21 Audit Reviews: 

 Building Control Partnership – (1 recommendation) The review concluded 
that there was an adequate framework of control in place, but there is limited 
compliance with this framework of control. Although a Partnership 
Agreement between Eastleigh Borough Council and Southampton City 
Council (SCC) is in place, the signing of a Deed of Variation to this 
agreement was placed on hold pending a complete review of the Partnership 
Agreement. As such, compliance to these ‘control’ documents is weak. 
Current Building Control processes and procedures between the councils 
are not wholly reflected in the Partnership Agreement. As a result, 9 
recommendations were made, one of these was assessed as priority 2 (high 
risk) regarding the need to draft a new Building Control agreement 
immediately that reflects current practice, processes and procedures. 
Discussion between parties have taken place and the final draft of the 
Partnership Agreement is in circulation.  With recent changes of staff at SCC 
a renewed deadline has been agreed for the end of December 2022.  

 
2019/20 Audit Reviews: 

 Accounting for Fixed Assets (Land and Property) (1 recommendation) this 
recommendation is to reconcile the Computerised Land and Property 
System (CLP) with the Finance Asset Register as part of the development of 
a new Asset Management System. This has been delayed due to the new 
system not yet having been implemented; however, work is progressing to 
ensure data management is optimal for the reconciliation of both systems 
annually. Finance and Assets continue to work together in the absence of an 
integrated system, and this will need to remain the case until such time as 
the current issues are progressed. The Executive Head of Finance & 
Housing Programme is comfortable that the two systems are not currently 
reconciled as there are processes within the accounting policies which 
ensures the Fixed Asset Registers are complete and the values are also 
checked by external audit annually. 

 
16. Corporate Leadership Board has reviewed the positions with the 

implementation of audit recommendations and where necessary any 
outstanding non-responses to audit reports/recommendations are being 
pursued; or Corporate Leadership Board are prepared to accept the risk in the 
short term when considered against other priority works across the Council. 
 

Financial Implications 

17. There are no direct significant financial implications arising from this report 
although it is recognised that some audit recommendations will require the 
investment of resource to implement which could compete with other priorities. 
For all recommendations, a timeline for implementation is agree with the Chief 
Internal Auditor who assesses this against the risk. Any concerns would be 
escalated to this Committee.  

81



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Risk Assessment 

18. The Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) must establish and maintain a system to 
monitor the disposition of audit results communicated to management. By not 
monitoring the progress made with the implementation of audit 
recommendations, the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) would be failing to meet 
requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Internal Audit 
Charter. This report provides Management and this Committee with details of 
the progress made.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

19. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report and an Equality 

Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

20. There are no proposals within this report to assess with regard to climate 
change and environmental implications. 

Conclusion 

21. The planned time and actual time are closely monitored to ensure where 
possible any variation is kept to a minimum. However, variations do occur and 
where necessary any impact on the plan is reported to this Committee.   

22. Work to complete the Audit Plan 2022/23 is being closely monitored against the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic as work to support the response and recovery 
is continuing. 

 

LISA SMY 
CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR (ACTING)   

 
Date: 14 October 2022 
Contact Officer: Lisa Smy  
Tel No: 02380 688015 
e-mail: lisa.smy@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Two  

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 

 Internal Audit Charter 2022/23 
 

82



Internal Audit Monitoring Statement - Quarter 2 2022/23 Appendix A 

2022/23 

Total   

Plan Days*

Q2 Planned 

days

Q2 Actual 

Days

Variance

Direct time (attributable to a specific audit review)

Major Systems 75 42.00 42.00 0.00

Corporate Governance 26 5.50 5.00 -0.50

Corporate Support 115 25.00 24.50 -0.50

Corporate Systems 30 15.50 15.50 0.00

Finance & Housing Programme 35 0.50 0.50 0.00

Assets & Project Delivery 30 0.00 0.00 0.00

Governance 55 13.00 13.00 0.00

Customer Care 15 1.25 1.25 0.00

Organisational & Strategic Development 50 4.50 4.50 0.00

Environment 15 0.00 0.00 0.00

Health & Wellbeing 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Planning & Economy 10 1.00 1.00 0.00

Neighbourhood Services 64 0.00 0.50 0.50

Contract Audit 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Members Scrutiny 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Consultancy/Improvement (VFM) 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Investigations 20 1.50 1.50 0.00

Prior Year Audit Completion 20 0.00 0.00 0.00
Help & Advice 20 11.00 10.00 -1.00

Covid-19 - Response and Support 20 3.50 3.50 0.00

Total direct days 650 124.25 122.75 -1.50

Indirect time (not attributable to a specific audit review) 

Annual Leave/Sick leave/Other leave 23.00 26.00 3.00

Training/Management/Development/Admin 83.00 83.00 0.00

Total in-direct days 351 106.00 109.00 3.00

Grand Total 1001 230.25 231.75 1.50

* as approved by Audit & Resources Committee 8th March 2022 

83



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

Audit Title Directorate  (Executive Area) Audit status 

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

Te
st

in
g 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

D
at

e
 o

f 
Fi

n
al

 R
e

p
o

rt

To
ta

l N
o

. o
f 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 

(g
ra

d
e

d
 1

-4
)

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 1
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
- 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

 a
ct

io
n

 *

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 1
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 

fu
lly

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 2
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
- 

ac
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 1
 m

o
n

th
 *

*

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 2
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 

fu
lly

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 1
 o

r 
2

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g/
in

 

p
ro

gr
e

ss

Local Government Transparency Code 2015 Governance Final Report Issued Adequate Limited 19.08.2022 6 0 - 0 - 0

Risk Management Governance In Progress

Business Applications Organisational Development In Progress

Accounting for Fixed Assets Finance & Housing Programme In Progress

Enforcement Customer Care In Progress

Members Scrutiny (Grants to Sponsored Bodies - SLA Review) Strategic Planning Final Report Issued n/a n/a 22.09.2022 0 0 - 0 - 0

Total 2022/23 6 0 0 0 0 0

Accounting System Finance & Housing Programme Final Report Issued Adequate Adequate 31.08.2022 5 0 - 0 - 0

Cash Collection & Banking Finance & Housing Programme At draft Adequate Adequate tbd 6 0 - 0 - -

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Support Corporate At draft Adequate Limited tbd 14 0 - 4 - 4

Local Taxation (Council Tax and NNDR) Corporate At draft Limited Limited tbd 32 0 - 11 - 11

Bank Reconciliation Interim FUR Finance & Housing Programme Final Report Issued Limited Adequate 21.02.2022 2 0 - 1 - 1

One Horton Heath (OHH) FUR Finance & Housing Programme In Progress

Accounts Recievable Finance & Housing Programme In Progress

Planning Fees FUR Planning and Economy Final Report Issued n/a n/a 01.08.2022 2 0 - 1 - 1

Payroll Support Services Final Report issued Limited Limited 01.08.2022 2 0 - 2 1 1

Total 2021/22 63 0 0 19 1 18

2020/21 Internal Audit Reviews:

Building Control Partnership  Service Delivery Final Report Issued Adequate Limited 18.06.2021 9 0 - 1 0 1

Total 2020/21 9 0 0 1 0 1

Accounting for Fixed Assets - Land & Property Support Services Final Report Issued Limited Limited 02.06.20 7 0 - 1 0 1

Total 2019/20 7 0 0 1 0 1

85 0 0 21 1 20

Progress of the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations - 2022/23 Q2

Grading

2022/23 Internal Audit Reviews:

2021/22 Internal Audit Reviews:

2019/20 Internal Audit Reviews with outstanding recommendations

Total (overall)

85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN: October 2022 - March 2023 

 
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken. 
 
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to: 
 
(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 

larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 

Borough of Eastleigh. 
 
The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework. 
 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

20 October 2022 
 

Yes 

 
Corporate Performance and 
Financial Monitoring  
 

Cabinet   20 Oct 2022   
 

To consider the quarterly 
report outlining the Council’s 
performance against 
outcomes in the Corporate 
Plan. 

Joe Mills /  
 

Yes 

 
Revisions to the Domestic 
Waste and Recycling Policy  
 

Cabinet   20 Oct 2022  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

Proposed changes to the 
policy in order to provide 
clearer information to 
residents and support them 
to recycle more and manage 
their waste. 

Gale Smith, 
Project Manager 
- Waste /  
 

87

A
genda Item

 10



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

2 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   20 Oct 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Jacqui Baxter, 
Lead Asset 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   20 Oct 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

8 December 2022 
 

Yes 

 
Corporate Fees and Charges  
 

Cabinet   8 Dec 2022   
 

An annual report setting 
those fee and charge levels 
that are set corporately 
(others being devolved to 
Local Area Committees). 

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Procurement Policy  
 

Cabinet   8 Dec 2022  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee 
 

The purpose of this Policy is 
to inform all Council 
employees, procuring 
managers, suppliers and 
contractors of the Council’s 
new expectations in relation 
to procuring goods and 
services in a more 
sustainable way. This 
includes considering the 
wider environmental, social 
and economic benefits when 
procuring goods and 
services, and in particular 
the suppliers’ carbon 
emissions. 

Mike Culver, 
Strategy 
Development 
Senior Specialist 
/  
 

88



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

3 

Yes 

 
Consultation Responses  
 

Cabinet   8 Dec 2022   
 

HCC 20mph policy review 
and TfSE Strategic 
Investment Plan 
Retrospective approval for 
the Borough Councils 
response to recent 
consultations.  

Cali Sparks, 
Sustainable 
Transport Senior 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Passenger Transport  
 

Cabinet   8 Dec 2022   
 

Approval for investment into 
alternative passenger 
transport services for the 
Chandlers Ford and 
Hiltingbury and Bursledon, 
Hamble and Hound local 
areas following the 
withdrawal of Xelabus 
service in September 2022. 

Cali Sparks, 
Sustainable 
Transport Senior 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   8 Dec 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Jacqui Baxter, 
Lead Asset 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   8 Dec 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

23 February 2023 
 

Yes 

 
Public Transport Strategy  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023   
 

Approval is sought to present 
a draft public transport 
strategy for public 
consultation in early 2023. 

Cali Sparks, 
Sustainable 
Transport Senior 
Specialist /  
 89



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

4 

Yes 

 
2023 - 2024 Borough Council 
Budget  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To consider and recommend 
the 2023 – 2024 Borough 
Council Budget to Council for 
approval. 

Andy Smith, 
Executive Head 
of Finance and 
Housing 
Programme 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/  
 

Yes 

 
Climate Change and Strategy 
Action Plan  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To approve a new strategy 
and action plan. 

Mike Culver, 
Strategy 
Development 
Senior Specialist 
/  
 

Yes 

 
One Horton Heath Project 
Update  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023   
 

An update on the progress of 
the development and the 
latest financial position. 

Andy Smith, 
Executive Head 
of Finance and 
Housing 
Programme 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/  
 

Yes 

 
Vehicle and Plant Replacement 
Programme for the next 5 years  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023   
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
consider and approve a 
report that sets out the 
vehicle and plant needs for 
the Council for the next 5 
years. 

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director /  
 

90



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

5 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Jacqui Baxter, 
Lead Asset 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   23 Feb 2023   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

23 March 2023 
 

Yes 

 
Public Transport Strategy  
 

Cabinet   23 Mar 2023   
 

Approval is sought for the 
adoption of the public 
transport strategy following 
public consultation in early 
2023. 

Cali Sparks, 
Sustainable 
Transport Senior 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   23 Mar 2023   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Jacqui Baxter, 
Lead Asset 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   23 Mar 2023   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

 
 
FOOTNOTES: 
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken. 
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting. 91



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

6 

 
Contact Officer: Laura Johnston –Democratic Services Manager 
Publication Date: 24 October 2022 
 

92



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME 

AS AT AUGUST 2022 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item for Consideration Annual, 
Quarterly or  
Standing 
item 

Staff/Member 
Attendance 

    

To Be Tabled    

    

    

    

1 November 
2022 

Verbal Update on Financial 
Accounts Audit 

 S King 

 Corporate Fees and Charges Annual Diccon Bright 

 Procurement Policy  Mike Culver 

 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (QTR 2) 

Quarterly L Smy 

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Forward Plan All Mtgs  

 A&R Work Programme All Mtgs  

    

17 January 
2023 

Statement of Accounts Annual Andy Smith 

 Corporate Risk Management 
Annual Report  

Annual J Cassar 

 Bad Debt Report  Tom Andrews/ 
Mark 

 Update on Financial Accounts 
Audit 

 EY 

 Annual Statement Accounts 
2021/22 

Annual A Smith  

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Forward Plan All Mtgs  

 A&R Work Programme All Mtgs  

    

21 February 
2023 

Repairs and Renewals Report  Nigel Stephens 

 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 3) 

Quarterly L Smy 

 Asset Management Strategy Annual J Baxter 

 Property Portfolio Update Annual J Baxter 

 Verbal Updates from PEG All Mtgs Members 

 Forward Plan All Mtgs  

 A&R Work Programme All Mtgs  

    

7 March 2023 Internal Audit Charter 2022/23 Annual Lisa Smy 

93

Agenda Item 11



 Internal Audit Strategic Plan 
2022/23 

Annual Lisa Smy 

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Staffing Report  Annual Shirley Robbins 
Sukhi Aujla 

 

94


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Procurement Policy
	Procurement App 1
	Procurement App 2
	Procurement App 3

	6 Corporate Fees and Charges
	FeesandChargesAppendicesAIv2
	For Appendix


	8 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring Statement (QTR 2)
	Appendix A for Internal Monitoring Statement Q2
	Appendix B for Internal Monitoring Statement Q2

	10 Cabinet Forward Plan
	11 A&R Work Programme

